
Chelan County 
Department of Community Development 

316 Washington Street, Suite 301, Wenatchee, WA 98801 
        Telephone: (509) 667-6225 Fax: (509) 667-6475 

 

    

  
 
December 1, 2020 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jim Brown, Director 
 
SUBJECT:  PACKET—CONTINUING PUBLIC HEARING FOR REMAINING COMP 
PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATIONS 
 
This packet of materials contains: 
 
Exhibits (4): 
 
A:  PC Agenda for December 16, 2020 meeting: Continuing public hearing for 

remaining comp plan amendment applications 
 
B:  Draft Minutes from the November 18, 2020 meeting 
 
C: Documents for CPA 20-005 and CPA 20-007 (the remaining CPAs from the original 

hearing packet of last month) 
 
D: Proposed PC schedule for 2021 (suggest holiday date avoidance pre-entered for 

discussion) 
 
NOTE: Catherine did create an “index” for both CPA documents per the request of the Vice-
Chair during last month’s hearing.  Hopefully this will help you navigate each document more 
efficiently.   
 



 
Exhibit A 



 

Chelan County Planning Commission 
Chair: Ryan Kelso Vice Chair: Carl Blum 

Commissioners District 1: Vicki Malloy, Ryan Kelso, Will Wiggs 
Commissioners District 2: Jim Newberry, Ed Martinez, Joel Walinski 

Commissioners District 3: Carl Blum, Pat Hammersmith, Vacant 
 
Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, December 16, 2020 at 6:00 P.M.  
Chelan County Community Development 
 

In response to the Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, the Planning Commission will hold all 
of their Regular and Special Meetings via Zoom Video Conference until further notice. 
Click the link below to join the meeting, beginning at 6:00 pm on November 18, 2020. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84352217803?pwd=U3kzVmN6bDBVWmQ2ekN0b1Fuc01odz09  
Meeting ID: 843 5221 7803 
Passcode: 587687 
 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

I. Administrative 
A. Review/Approval of Minutes from November 18, 2020 

 
II. Public Comment Period 

Comment for any matters not identified on the agenda (limit 2 minutes per 
person) 
 

III. Old Business 
 
E. Hearing for CPA 20-005 Joya 
 
F. Hearing for CPA 20-007 SSRT Text Amendment 
 

IV. New Business 
 

A. Proposed Planning Commission schedule for 2021 
 

V. Discussion, at the Chair’s discretion 
 

VI. Adjournment *Meeting will go no longer than 8:00 PM.* 
 
Materials available on the Community Development website 

 
 

 
Any person may join this meeting via Zoom Video conference, of which the link is provided on 
the Chelan County Website. A Copy of the Agenda may be reviewed online 
https://www.co.chelan.wa.us/community-development/pages/planning-commission or requesting 
it by email at CD.Director@co.chelan.wa.us  
 
Chelan County has been recording Planning Commission meetings which will continue to be 

https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/proclamations/20-28%20-%20COVID-19%20Open%20Govt%20Laws%20Waivers%20%28tmp%29.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84352217803?pwd=U3kzVmN6bDBVWmQ2ekN0b1Fuc01odz09
https://www.co.chelan.wa.us/community-development/pages/planning-commission
mailto:CD.Director@co.chelan.wa.us


accessible on the Community Development Planning Commission web page shortly after the 
meeting takes place. If you need special accommodations to view the meetings while they take 
place, please contact us immediately at 509-667-6225 to set up a place for you to do so on the 
County Campus. Keep in mind you would be required to were personal protective equipment and 
maintain social distancing guide lines at all times. 

 
 

Next Regular Meeting 
January 27, 2021 at 6:00 pm via Zoom 

 
* All Planning Commission meetings and hearings are open to the public. 



 
Exhibit B 



 

CHELAN COUNTY 
  PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
 

Chelan County Planning Commission     Date: November 18, 2020 
Chelan County Community Development VIA ZOOM    
Called to Order: 6:02 PM 
316 Washington St., Suite 301  
Wenatchee, WA 98801 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 6:02 pm. 
 

COMMISSIONER PRESENT/ABSENT 
Ryan Kelso  Present   Carl Blum   Present 
Vicki Malloy      Present   Jim Newberry               Present 
Pat Hammersmith Present                           Ed Martinez                 Present   
James Wiggs  Present   Joel Walinski                Present   
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Jim Brown, Director 
Catherine Lorbeer, Assistant Director 
Wendy Lane, Permit Clerk  
 
PUBLIC PRESENT 
ZOOM MEETING – 36 PARTICIPANTS INCLUDING STAFF AND PC MEMBERS 
Chairman Ryan Kelso asked the Planning Commission members if all had read the minutes from the 
October 28, 2020, meeting. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Joel Walinski, second by Commissioner Vicki Malloy, to approve the 
minutes from the October 28, 2020, meeting. 

Vote – Unanimous 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

None 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 



 

None 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
       Hearing for CPA 20-008 Economic Development Text Amendment   

Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer explained the application.  Economic Development Program 
Director Blake Baldwin followed with additional information regarding the application.  Staff 
recommends approval. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the hearing for public testimony.  There was none.   

There was discussion among with Commissioners with input from Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer 
and Economic Development Program Director Blake Baldwin as needed. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso closed the public portion of the meeting for CPA 20-008. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Ed Martinez, second by Commissioner Vicki Malloy, to approve CPA 
20-008 Economic Development Text Amendment. 

Vote – Unanimous 

     Hearing for CPA 20-001 Moon Beam Ranch 

Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer explained the application.  Staff recommends denial. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the public meeting.  Anne Hessburg presented the application on behalf of the 
applicant.  Several Commissioners had questions for Ms. Hessburg and she answered them. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the hearing for public testimony.  There was none. 

The Commissioners questioned the merits of the application.  There was a back and forth among the group. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso closed the public portion of the meeting for CPA 20-001 Moon Beam Ranch. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Jim Newberry, second by Commissioner James Wiggs, to approve CPA 20-001 
Moon Beam Ranch. 

Vote – Commissioners Malloy, Wiggs, Kelso, Newberry, Blum, Hammersmith approve; Commissioners Martinez 
and Walinski oppose. 

Motion carries. 



 

     Hearing for CPA 20-003 Perry 

Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer explained the application.  Staff recommends denial. 

Dan Beardslee presented the application on behalf of the applicant, by way of a PowerPoint presentation.  
Commissioners asked questions and Mr. Beardslee answered them. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the floor for public testimony.  Amanda Zuluaga, Tony Zuluaga and Roxanne 
Giffin all testified that they owned neighboring properties and were opposed to the application. 

There was a discussion among the Commissioners regarding the application. 

Amanda Zuluaga continued her testimony with her concerns on what would transpire if the application was 
approved. 

Dan Beardslee countered comments made by the Commissioners and the public. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso closed the public portion of the hearing for CPA 20-003 Perry. 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Carl Blum, second by Commissioner Joel Walinski, to deny CPA 20-003 Perry. 

Vote – Commissioners Walinski, Wiggs, Blum, Martinez and Hammersmith approve; Commissioners Malloy and 
Kelso oppose.  At 7:41 pm, it was discovered that Commissioner Jim Newberry was no longer in attendance. 

Motion carries. 

     Hearing for CPA 20-004 Smith 

Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer explained the application.  Staff recommends denial. 

Brent and Rachel Smith explained their application.  They answered questions from Commissioner Martinez. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso opened the floor to public testimony.  Michelle McCormick, owner of a neighboring 
property, spoke giving her thoughts and concerns of the application.  She is opposed to it. 

Brent and Rachel Smith countered Ms. McCormick’s comments. 

Chairman Ryan Kelso closed the public portion of the hearing on CPA 20-004 Smith. 

There was a discussion among the Commissioners concerning the application.  

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Ed Martinez, second by Commissioner Carl Blum, to approve CPA 20-004 
Smith.  



 

There was continued discussion among the Commissioners with Assistant Director Catherine Lorbeer assisting as 
needed. 

Vote – Unanimous 

MOTION: 

Motion made by Commissioner Carl Blum, second by Commissioner Ed Martinez, to continue applications CPA 
20-005 Joya and CPA 20-007 SSRT Text Amendment to the December 16, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting.  

Vote – Unanimous 
 
Discussion, at the Chair’s discretion 
 
None 
 
Commissioner Carl Blum expressed appreciation to staff for their work as of late.  He also made a 
request that any future staff-reports, over 150 pages, be indexed for easier reference.  Assistant Director 
Catherine Lorbeer stated that she would do her best to do so in the future. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTON: 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Vicki Malloy, seconded by Commissioner Carl Blum, to adjourn the 
meeting. 
 
Vote – unanimous 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:10 pm. 
 
Next Planning Commission Meeting to be held on December 16, 2020, at 6:00 pm, – a Zoom meeting. 
 

All Planning Commission meetings and hearings are open to the public. 



 
Exhibit C 



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 1 of 7 

 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Chelan County Planning Commission 

FROM: Chelan County Community Development 

HEARING DATE: November 18, 2020 

FILE NUMBER: CPA 20-005, Joya 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION 

The Chelan County Planning Commission may make a motion to recommend approval or denial of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Chelan County Board of County Commissioners, 
pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050.  Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 
which may be modified, are included in this staff report.  Staff recommends: 
 
A. Move to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the subject property’s 

land use designation from Rural Residential/Resource 5 (RR5) to Rural Village (RV), given file number 
CPA 20-005, based upon the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within the November 
18, 2020 staff report. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Planning Commission Workshop October 28, 2020   

Notice of Application to Surrounding 
Properties September 10, 2020 

Planning Commission Notice of Hearing 
Published November 7, 2020 

Planning Commission Hearing on November 18, 2020 

60-day State agency review Received September 17, 2020 with comment 
period ending November 16, 2020 

SEPA Determination November 5, 2020 

SEPA Environmental Review 

A Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued under WAC 197-11-340(2) for CPA 20-005 on 
November 5, 2020 (Attachment 1). The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have 
a probable significant adverse impact on the environment.  An Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is 
not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). The decision was made after review of a completed 
environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead agency.  

Agency Comments:  

Department of Commerce provided comments, dated November 5, 2020, that the proposed amendment 
would violate the very strict Growth Management Act requirements for Limited Areas of More Intense Rural 
Development (LAMIRD).  The proposed amendment is a clear expansion of the existing development 
pattern that will result in irregular LAMIRD boundaries and low-density rural sprawl. Refer to Attachment 2 
for full comment letter. 

Chelan County 

Department of Community Development 

 
 

2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 
Staff Report 

 

  



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 2 of 7 

Department of Ecology provided comments, dated September 22, 2020, stating that prospective water 
users must obtain authorization from the Department of Ecology before diverting surface water or 
withdrawing ground water. 

The Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation provided comments, dated October 12, 2020, that 
states that the proposed amendment is within the Traditional Territory of the Wenatchi Tribe.  If the project 
moves forward, conditions of development would be requested to manage inadvertent discoveries and 
post-review discoveries. 

Public Comment: 

Karen Carson provided comments, date stamped September 24, 2020, stating her concerns that the 
proposed land use change would adversely affect her orchard property that is currently in open space.  Ms. 
Carson states that the proposed amendment would severely impact her ability to continue farming the land 
without interruption.  Concerns were also expressed about how adjacent lands were described in the 
applicant’s submitted materials. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION – CPA 20-005 – JOYA 

Proposal: An application for a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment was submitted by Rudy Joya 
(owners) to change the land use designation for the subject property (10 acres) from Rural 
Residential/Resource 5 (RR5) to Rural Village (RV). The subject property is located at 5900 Webster Way, 
Cashmere, WA 98815 and further identified by Assessor’s Parcel No: 24-19-31-940-005.   
See Attachment 4 File of Record. 

Chelan County Land Use Designations 

 
 



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 3 of 7 

Density: Currently, the minimum lot size is 5 acres for the RR5 zoning district. The proposed amendment 
would potentially allow for an increased density of the RR5 parcel from 2 lots to a possible 36 lots in the RV 
zoning district. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Chelan County conducts an annual concurrent review of proposals to amend the Comprehensive Plan.  
The Plan represents the long-term vision for future land uses and development.  Applicants must 
demonstrate the merits of the requested change as being consistent with adopted goals and policies.   
 
The following Comprehensive Plan policies are relevant to the proposed request for CPA 20-005: 
 
LU 1.5:  Encourage infill of vacant and underdeveloped land in existing residential areas within urban growth 

areas and rural communities, such as LAMIRDs. 
 
LU 1.7:  Consistent with the Growth Management Act, ensure provision of necessary public facilities and 

public services for the development, infill and redevelopment of existing residential and mixed-use 
centers outside urban growth areas, such as LAMIRDs or rural communities. Such services should 
not be extended in a manner that promotes low density sprawl in rural areas. 

 
RE 2.6: To achieve a variety of rural densities and uses, allow for development clustering, density transfer, 

design guidelines, conservation easements, and other innovative techniques to accommodate 
growth consistent with rural character. 

 
RE 3.9: Allow the infill, development, and redevelopment of existing intensely developed rural areas where 

consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan, including recreational, residential, 
mixed-use, and shoreline developments. 

 
RE 6.1: Development in LAMIRDs, except for industrial areas or industrial sites within mixed-use areas, 

should be principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population. 
 
H 2.1:  Promote a diversity of housing unit types and densities to meet the needs of all existing and future 

residents of the County, including both site-built and manufactured and modular homes. 
 

REVIEW CRITERIA 

The proposals were analyzed based on information provided by the applicant or when readily available, 
within existing County resources. While each application may or may not have met all the criteria, the 
applications must be weighed by their individual and collective impacts. Additionally, agency and public 
comment play a role in understanding potential impacts to surrounding land uses, impacts to rural character, 
and how the amendment may serve the general public’s interest.   
 
Pursuant to Chelan County Code (CCC) Section 14.14.060(1), the following general review criteria were 
used to evaluate the proposed amendment.  
 
A. The proposal is consistent with the goals of the Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW), and 

any applicable county-wide planning policies. 
 

Finding of Fact: The Growth Management Act under RCW 36.70A.020 contains planning goals that 
include, but are not limited to, 1) Urban Growth, 2) Reduce Sprawl, 3) Transportation, 4) Housing, and 
5) Economic Development.  The proposed land use change would serve to promote a variety of 
residential densities and housing types. 
 
The Growth Management Act (GMA) permits the development, redevelopment and infill of existing 
intensely developed rural areas known as LAMIRDs. However, the Act does not allow for the expansion 



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 4 of 7 

of these areas outside of logically set boundaries. Requirements of the GMA that allow more intense 
development in rural areas include a provision that these areas serve primarily the existing and 
projected rural population, generally to ensure rural sprawl does not occur where inappropriate. 
 
Agency comments indicate that the proposed amendment would violate the very strict Growth 
Management Act requirements for LAMIRDs.  The proposed amendment would be a clear expansion 
of the existing development pattern that would result in irregular LAMIRD boundaries and low-density 
rural sprawl. 
 
County-wide Planning Policies provide guidance to coordinated planning with the public and other 
affected jurisdictions. 
 
Conclusion: The proposal would not be consistent with the GMA goals and with County-wide Planning 
Policies.  

 
B. The amendment is consistent with or supports the Chelan County comprehensive plan goals and 

policies. 
 

Finding of Fact: The proposed land use change would support Policy RE 2.6, by allowing for a variety 
of rural densities and uses to accommodate growth consistent with rural character.  The amount of 
privately-owned developable land in the County is limited. Innovative techniques can provide for rural 
development while protecting the rural character of the County.  The proposed amendment also 
supports Policy H 2.1 by promoting a diversity of housing unit types and densities.  An adequate supply 
of appropriately zoned land will ensure that the GMA plan does not artificially create inflation in housing 
prices by restricting competition in the land market. 
 
However, the proposed land use change would not support Policies LU 1.5, LU 1.7, RE 3.9 and RE 
6.1.  Many vacant and underdeveloped parcels of land are available within existing residential 
developments that can accommodate further development. The RV land use designation is considered 
a Type 1 LAMIRD.  LAMIRDs permit the development, redevelopment and infill of existing intensely 
developed rural areas, but they do not allow for the expansion of these RV areas outside of logically 
set boundaries. LAMIRDs include a provision that these areas serve primarily the existing and projected 
rural population, generally to ensure rural sprawl does not occur where inappropriate. 
 
Conclusion: The proposed amendment would not be consistent with and does not support the goals 
and policies of the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
C. The amendment complies with Comprehensive Plan land use designation/siting criteria. 
 

Finding of Fact:  The subject site is currently used for a single-family residence, accessory structures, 
and pasture.  The proposed amendment would change the 10 acres to the Rural Village (RV) 
designation, a Type 1 LAMIRD.  The RV designation would provide additional development flexibility 
such as smaller lot sizes or construction of duplex dwellings to support growing housing demands. 
 
Properties to the east across Webster Way are designated Rural Village (RV) and include residential 
uses.  Webster Way currently serves as the boundary separating the existing RV development on the 
east side from rural residential land use designations on the west side. 
 
The purpose of the RV designation is to provide the opportunity for the development, redevelopment 
and infill of existing, intensely developed rural residential areas for residential and other rural 
development.  The predominant parcel size is less than 2.5 acres.  LAMIRDs are designated to identify 
more intense areas of existing development, and to minimize and contain those existing developed 
areas within the rural lands. LAMIRDs are rural; they are contained and compact, and, with minor 
exceptions, were built before July 1, 1990. 

 



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 5 of 7 

Conclusion: Based on the designation/siting criteria for RV and LAMIRD designations, as outlined in 
the Comprehensive Plan, the proposed amendment would not be consistent because it would expand 
the boundary of the RV designation beyond its logical boundary instead of minimizing and containing 
the land use to existing developed areas.   

 
D. The amendment is supported by and consistent with the capital facility element and the transportation 

element. Amendments that would alter existing provisions of the capital facilities or transportation 
elements shall demonstrate why existing provisions should not continue to be in effect or why existing 
provisions should be amended. 

 
Finding of Fact:  Access is from Webster Way, a county right of way.  No alteration of the Capital Facility 
Element or Transportation Element is expected as a result of the proposal. Future development of the 
site will be reviewed for potential impacts to existing roads and creation of new private or public roads.  
   
Conclusion: No change in the Capital Facility Element or Transportation Element has been identified. 
The proposed amendment would be supported by and consistent with the existing capital facility 
element and transportation element. 

 
E. The amendment does not adversely affect the surrounding land uses.  
 

Finding of Fact: The areas surrounding the subject properties are in agricultural and residential use. 
The properties to the north are designated Rural Residential/Resource 5 (RR5). Properties to the west 
are designated Rural Residential/Resource 5 (RR5). Properties to the south are designated Suburban 
Residential (SR) and Public (P) in the Cashmere Urban Growth Area (UGA). Properties to the east 
across Webster Way are designated Rural Village (RV). 
 
Under the proposed RV land use designation, density may be less than one (1) dwelling unit per acre, 
when consistent with Health Districts standards; however, in no case may it be less than one (1) 
dwelling unit per 12,000 sf lot.  Development clustering would offer the opportunity to protect the rural 
character by focusing lots in more buildable locations and placing open spaces near larger, neighboring 
parcels.   
 
Public comment state concerns that the proposed land use change would adversely affect adjacent 
orchard property that is currently in open space and would severely impact the ability to continue 
farming the land without interruption. 
 
Conclusion: The proposed amendment does adversely affect the surrounding land uses because it 
proposes an abrupt change in density and would inappropriately expand a LAMIRD land use boundary. 

 
F. The amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term commercial 

significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 
 

Finding of Fact: The subject site is composed of one parcel that is currently in Rural 
Residential/Resource 5 (RR5) and is located in an Airport Overlay. The site is currently used for a 
single-family residence, accessory structures, and pasture.  Physical characteristics include flat ground, 
in an area shown to have erosive soils, possible ground contamination from historic orchard use, and 
a ditch running parallel with the south property line. 
 
Conclusion: The proposed amendment does not appear to adversely affect lands designated as 
resource lands of long-term commercial significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot 
be mitigated. 

 
G. The amendment does not adversely affect the supply of land for various purposes which is available to 

accommodate projected growth over the twenty-year planning period covered by the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 6 of 7 

Finding of Fact:  The proposed amendment would make the subject property available for higher density 
development, thereby accommodating projected growth in the rural, unincorporated areas of Chelan 
County. 
 
The potential development of 36 lots would modestly contribute to the projected growth of the 
Comprehensive Plan and would therefore not result in an adverse impact. 
 
Conclusion: The proposed amendment would be unlikely to have an adverse impact on projected 
growth. 

 
H. The proposed amendment serves the interests of both the applicant and the general public including 

public health, safety, and welfare. 
 

Finding of Fact:  The proposed amendment would increase the density of residential and other rural 
land uses to the area.  However, many vacant and underdeveloped parcels of land are available within 
existing residential developments that can accommodate further development.  But despite availability, 
the price of land is ever increasing and moderately priced rural properties are highly desired for 
residential building lots.   
 
The proposed amendment is not anticipated to impact the general public negatively in regards to public 
health, safety, or welfare.  
 
Conclusion:  The proposed amendment specifically serves the applicant but the general public including 
public health, safety and welfare, is not anticipated to be negatively affected.  

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1 .  Chelan County adopted Title 14, Development Permit Procedures and Administration outlining 
provisions relating to the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan consistent with RCW 36.70A. The 
County followed the procedures required for amendment of the Comprehensive Plan. 

2 .  Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and Chelan County 
Code outline provisions relating to the adoption and amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. The 
County used the applicable guidelines and regulatory review criteria for each amendment. 

3 .  RCW 36.70A.210 requires that the Comprehensive Plan be consistent with the provisions of the 
adopted County-Wide Planning Policies. 

4 .  The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act, and WAC 197-11, SEPA Rules, 
have been satisfied. To comply with the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act for 
environmental review of a non-project action, the County, as lead agency issued a Determination of 
Non-significance for the properties on November 5, 2020. 

5 .  The required State agency review with the Department of Commerce (COM) and other State agencies 
initiated on September 17, 2020, submittal ID No. 2020-S-1793 (Attachment 3), pursuant to RCW 
36.70A.106.   

6 .  A request for a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment was submitted by Rudy Joya (owners) to change 
the land use designation for the subject property (10 acres) from Rural Residential/Resource 5 (RR5) 
to Rural Village (RV). The subject property is located at 5900 Webster Way, Cashmere, WA 98815 and 
further identified by Assessor’s Parcel No: 24-19-31-940-005.  
a. The location and characteristics are not consistent with Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

designation for Rural Village (RV), as outlined in this staff report.  
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1 .  The amendment to the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan is not consistent with the requirements of 
the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and County-Wide 
Planning Policies. 

2 .  The amendment does not comply with the Comprehensive Plan designation/siting criteria. 
3 .  The amendment does adversely affect the surrounding land uses. 



   

CPA 20-005 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments Page 7 of 7 

4 .  The amendment does not adversely affect designated resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 

5 .  The amendment does not adversely affect the supply of land for various purposes available to 
accommodate projected growth over the twenty-year planning period covered by the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

6 .  Reviewing agencies and the general public were given an opportunity to comment on the proposed 
amendments. 

7 .  The amendments are consistent with Chelan County Code Title 14 Development Permit Procedures 
and Administration. 

8 .  The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act and WAC 197-11, SEPA Rules 
have been satisfied. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The Chelan County Planning Commission may make a motion to recommend approval or denial of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Chelan County Board of County Commissioners, 
pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050.  Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 
which may be modified, are included in this staff report.  Staff recommends: 
 
A. Move to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the subject property’s 

land use designation from Rural Residential/Resource 5 (RR5) to Rural Village (RV), given file number 
CPA 20-005, based upon the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within the November 
18, 2020 staff report. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. SEPA Determination, signed November 5, 2020 
2. Agency Comment dated November 5, 2020 from the WA Dept. of Commerce 
3. 60-day Review Acknowledgment Letter from WA Dept. of Commerce 
4. File of Record for CPA 20-005  



CPA 20-005 
ATTACHMENT 1 
SEPA DNS



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE    PO Box 42525    Olympia, Washington 98504-2525    (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 

November 5, 2020 

Ms. Catherine Lorbeer, AICP 
Assistant Director 
Chelan County Community Development 
316 Washington Street, Suite 301 
Wenatchee, Washington  98801 

Sent Via Electronic Mail 

Re:  Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

Dear Ms. Lorbeer: 

Thank you for sending Growth Management Services Chelan County’s proposed 2020 
Comprehensive Plan amendments.  We appreciate the opportunity to provide the following 
comments. 

CPA-2020-001, 004 and 005 
The Department of Commerce has significant concerns about these proposed amendments, 
which, if adopted, are clear violations of Washington State’s Growth Management Act (GMA). 

The GMA was amended in 1997 to provide flexibility in comprehensive plans for economic 
development while maintaining rural character.  The amendments allowed counties to identify 
limited areas of more intense rural development (LAMIRDs), which are areas of higher intensity 
residential, mixed use, commercial or industrial development.1 LAMIRDs are typically rural 
hamlets, crossroads, lakeshore development or unincorporated burghs with smaller residential lot 
sizes, businesses and services. 

When designating LAMIRDs, counties must “adopt measures to minimize and contain the 
existing areas or uses of areas of more intensive rural development”.2  The law is very specific in 
limiting LAMIRDs to the existing development patterns on the landscape as they existed on July 
1, 1990.3  This is primarily determined by the built environment at that time.  A core function of 
LAMIRDS is a logical outer boundary that does not allow for expansion of low-density rural 
sprawl. 

1 RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d) 
2 RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d)(iv) 
3 RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d)(v) 

CPA 20-005 
ATTACHMENT 2 
WA Commerce 
Comments



Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 2 
 
Each of the proposed amendments violate the very strict GMA LAMIRD requirements.  They 
are clear expansions that will result in irregular LAMIRD boundaries and low-density rural 
sprawl. 
 
CPA 2020-003 
This amendment proposes to change approximately 8 acres of land from designated agricultural 
resource lands of long-term commercial significance (AC) to rural residential (RR 2.5).  The 
subject property appears to include a productive vineyard, winery and residence, all permitted 
uses in the AC zone.  The following comments are nearly identical to those provided during last 
years’ annual comprehensive plan amendment process for a similar proposal, which was 
appealed to the Growth Management Hearings Board.  The Hearings Board decision on the 
appeal is pending. 
 
Agriculture is a cornerstone of the state economy and the GMA has strong provisions to protect 
natural resource lands.  The market value of agricultural products sold in Chelan County was 
$258,434,000 as of the 2017 Agricultural Census.4  The agriculture industry in Washington State 
constitutes 13% of our total economy, is a $49 billion industry, and one of Commerce’s key 
sectors for economic growth.  Although this proposal only involves approximately 8 acres of 
land, the continued “chipping away” at productive agricultural lands could have long-term, 
negative effects on agricultural viability in Chelan County. 
 
The GMA requires counties to designate and conserve resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance.5 Counties “should not review resource lands designations solely on a parcel-by-
parcel process”.6  Once the county establishes a willingness to “de-designate” productive 
resource lands, it will be increasingly difficult to resist future applications.  Over time, 
cumulative loss of resource lands could impact agricultural viability and Chelan County’s 
economy. 
 
WAC 365-190-050 includes criteria to classify and designate commercial resource lands, 
including the following that are particularly relevant to the proposal: 
 

- Lands that are currently used for agricultural production and lands that are capable of 
such use must be evaluated for designation. 

- The intent of the landowner to use land for agriculture or cease such use is not the 
controlling factor in determining if land is used or capable of being used for 
agricultural production.  

 
If Chelan County has concerns about the current designation of agricultural lands, we 
recommend the County conduct a comprehensive assessment of natural resource lands 
designations on a countywide or regional basis during your next periodic update process, rather 
than a parcel-by-parcel basis. 
 
                                                           
4 United States Department of Agriculture 
5 RCW 36.70A.050 and .060 
6 WAC 365-190-050 



Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 3 
 
Chelan County’s Comprehensive Plan provides guidance for designating commercial agricultural 
land and any de-designation process should use the same criteria in deciding whether to retain or 
change to another comprehensive plan land use category.7  The commercial agriculture 
designation should be retained unless it no longer meets the criteria identified in the countywide 
assessment. 
 
The application expresses concern about the non-conforming lot size limiting the ability to use 
the property.  Subdividing the parcel is the only limit currently, as the minimum lot size is 10 
acres in the AC zone.  Chelan County Code allows all structures and uses identified in the AC 
land use matrix to be established or constructed on legal lots of record.8 
 
CPA-20-007 
The proposed text amendment considers appropriate locations for small scale recreation or 
tourist activities. Some Land Use categories allow “intensification” of existing small scale 
recreation or tourist uses while other categories allow “new” small scale recreation or tourist 
uses.  
 
Two critical things to consider when evaluating changes to the Rural Land Use Element and 
designated commercial resource lands: 
 

 Are the changes consistent with rural character as defined by the County? 
 Will the changes interfere with resource lands production? 

 
With regard to rural land use, the overarching objectives of the GMA and the County are to 
protect rural character and to maintain the economic viability of agriculture, forestry and mining. 
 
The GMA and implementing WACs provides specific guidance for designating Limited Areas of 
More Intense Rural Development (LAMIRD)9.  Three types of LAMIRDS are described as 
follows: 
 

Type 1:  Shoreline development, villages, hamlets activity centers or crossroad 
development that allow for “infill, development or redevelopment of existing areas”. 
Development or redevelopment may be allowed “provided it is consistent with the 
character of existing area “in terms of building size, scale, use and intensity”. 
 
Type 2:  Small-scale recreation uses through redevelopment of an existing site, 
intensification of an existing site, or new development on a previously undeveloped site, 
but not new residential development.  Small-scale recreation uses may be added as 
accessory uses for resource-based industries.  For accessory uses on agricultural lands of 
long-term agricultural significance, see WAC 365-196-815. 
 

                                                           
7 Chelan County Comprehensive Plan – Resource Element 
8 CCC Chapter 11.97.020 -  Nonconforming lots of record 
 9 RCW 36.70A.070 and WAC 365-196-425 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-815
http://www.co.chelan.wa.us/files/community-development/documents/comps_plan/2017%20Comp%20Plan/Attachment%20A%20-%202017-27%20Comprehensive%20Plan.pdf
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/html/Chelco11/Chelco1197.html
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-425


Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 4 
 

Type 3:  Isolated small-scale business and cottage industries that are not principally 
designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and nonresidential uses, but 
do provide job opportunities through intensification of development on existing lots or 
undeveloped sites.  Counties are not required to designate Type 3 LAMIRDs on the 
future land use map and may allow them as a conditional use subject to GMA statutory 
criteria. 

 
Chelan County LAMIRD designations must be consistent with GMA laws (RCWs) and 
administrative rules (WACs). The Rural Recreational/Residential (RRR) and Rural Village (RV) 
designations are listed as Type 1 LAMIRDs.  The comprehensive plan description for both 
designations allow for the “intensification of development on lots containing, or development of, 
small-scale recreational or tourist uses…”.  This is the statutory language for Type 2 LAMIRDs 
and should be amended to be consistent with the law. Type 1 LAMIRDS may not allow for 
intensification of existing uses. 
 
The Chelan County comprehensive plan allows for the intensification of existing small scale 
recreational tourist uses on Agricultural Commercial (AC) resource lands, but does not allow 
new recreational tourist uses.  Conversely, the Forest Commercial (FC) allows development of 
new small scale recreational or tourist uses.  While it may appear that this is an inconsistency 
that should be corrected, the GMA and implementing WACs provide specific guidance for 
counties to follow with regard to land uses that may impact agricultural production. 
 
Development regulations must prevent the conversion of all designated resources lands to uses 
that removes lands from resource production.  However, WAC 365-196-815(1)(b)(i) specifically 
states that development regulations must not allow primary use of agricultural resource lands that 
would convert those lands to non-resource purposes.  Further, accessory uses on agricultural 
resource lands may be allowed, consistent with criteria listed in WAC 365-196-815(3)(c).  Non-
agricultural accessory uses must support or add value to agricultural production. 
 
New small-scale tourist or recreation uses may be appropriate on designated forest land provided 
it meets the goals and intent of the comprehensive plan, GMA and implementing WACs. 
Prospective tourist or recreation uses must not interfere with the conservation of those lands or 
the production of timber. 
 
Please keep in mind that the comprehensive plan establishes land use policy and zoning 
regulations implement those policies.  Any changes to the comprehensive plan would then 
trigger a review and potential amendments to zoning regulations to ensure consistency between 
policy and regulation. 
 
Given the complexity of the issue, we recommend that the County take more time to consider 
amendments to the comprehensive plan text.  This will allow staff to conduct research and 
prepare draft language for the public, the Planning Commission and County Commissioner’s 
consideration.  It would also allow for a concurrent zoning text amendment process that will 
ensure consistency between the comprehensive plan and development regulations. 
 



Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 5 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposal.  If you have any questions or need 
technical assistance with any growth management issues, please feel free to contact me at 
scott.kuhta@commerce.wa.gov, or 509-795-6884. 
 
Sincerely, 

  
Scott Kuhta, AICP 
Senior Planner 
Growth Management Services 
 
cc:  Jim Brown, CD Director, Chelan County 

Steve Roberge, Deputy Managing Director, Growth Management Services 
Dave Andersen, Managing Director, Growth Management Services 

mailto:scott.kuhta@commerce.wa.gov


09/17/2020

Ms. Catherine Lorbeer
Assistant Director
Chelan County
316 Washington Street Suite 301
Wenatchee, WA 98801

Sent Via Electronic Mail

Re: Chelan County--2020-S-1793--60-day Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment

Dear Ms. Lorbeer:

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the 60-day 
Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment as required under RCW 36.70A.106.  We received your 
submittal with the following description.

1) Rural Residential/Recreational 5 acres and Rural Residential/Recreational 10 acres to
Rural Recreational/Residential; 2) Commercial Agricultural Lands to Rural
Residential/Recreational 2.5 acres; 3) Rural Residential/Recreational 5 acres to Rural
Village; 4) Rural Residential/Recreational 5 acres to Rural Village; 5) Chapter 3 and 4
related to small-scale recreational tourist activities

We received your submittal on 09/17/2020 and processed it with the Submittal ID 2020-S-1793. 
Please keep this letter as documentation that you have met this procedural requirement.  Your 
60-day notice period ends on 11/16/2020.

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies for comment.

Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment to Commerce within ten days of 
adoption.

If you have any questions, please contact Growth Management Services at 
reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov, or call Scott Kuhta, (509) 795-6884.

Sincerely,

Review Team
Growth Management Services

STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
1011 Plum Street SE � PO Box 42525 � Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 � (360) 725-4000

www.commerce.wa.gov

Page: 1 of 1

CPA 20-005
ATTACHMENT 3
60-day Review

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.106
mailto:%20reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov


















































































































   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Chelan County Planning Commission 

FROM: Chelan County Community Development 

HEARING DATE: November 18, 2020 

FILE NUMBER: CPA 20-007, SSRT Text Amend 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION 

The Chelan County Planning Commission may make a motion to recommend approval or denial of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Chelan County Board of County Commissioners, 
pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050.  Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 
which may be modified, are included in this staff report.   

Staff recommends Options 1 and 2 below: 
Option 1:  Move to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change Chapter 4 related 

to the allowances for small-scale recreational tourist activities, specifically in the Commercial 
Agricultural (AC) land use designations/siting criteria, given file number CPA 20-007, based upon 
the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within the November 18, 2020 staff report. 

 
Option 2: Move to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change Chapter 3, 

specifically by replacing “intensification of existing development or new development” with “infill, 
development, or redevelopment of existing areas” for small-scale recreation or tourist uses within 
the Rural Waterfront (RW) and Rural Recreational/Residential (RRR) land use 
designations/siting criteria; and by replacing “intensification of existing” with “infill, development, 
or redevelopment of existing areas” for small-scale recreation or tourist uses within the Rural 
Village (RV) land use designations/siting criteria, given file number CPA 20-007, based upon the 
findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within the November 18, 2020 staff report.  

 
Option 3: Move to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change Chapter 3 and 

Chapter 4 related to the allowances for small-scale recreational tourist activities, and direct Staff 
to conduct additional research on Type 1 and Type 2 Limited Areas of More Intensive Rural 
Development (LAMIRDs) for consistency with the intent of the Growth Management Act (GMA) 
and with guidance in the Washington Administrative Code (WAC); and if necessary, bring back 
recommended language changes to the Comprehensive Plan and Chelan County Code in next 
year’s docket. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Planning Commission Workshop October 28, 2020   

Notice of Application to Interested Parties September 10, 2020 

Planning Commission Notice of Hearing 
Published November 7, 2020 

Planning Commission Hearing on November 18, 2020 

Chelan County 

Department of Community Development 

 
 

2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment 
Staff Report 

 

  



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 2 of 8 

60-day State agency review Received September 17, 2020 with comment 
period ending November 16, 2020 

SEPA Environmental Review 

The proposed Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment is exempt per WAC 197-11-800(19)(b).  

Agency Comments:  

The Department of Commerce provided comments, dated November 5, 2020, stating that given the 
complexity of the issue, they recommend that the County take more time to consider amendments to the 
comprehensive plan text. It would also allow for a concurrent zoning text amendment process that will 
ensure consistency between the comprehensive plan and development regulations.  Refer to Attachment 
1 for full comment letter. 

Public Comments: 

Name Date Received Nature of Comment 
Tyler and Raye Evans September 29, 

2020 
Object to any re-interpretation of Comprehensive 
Plan that would allow Small Scale Recreation 
Tourist (SSRT) uses in areas zoned for 
Commercial Agriculture. 

Frank McKenney September 30, 
2020 

Whatever is changed in the Comprehensive Plan 
should not allow previous proposals for SSRT in 
Commercial Agriculture near his property. 

Scot and Robyn Teichner October 2, 2020 Oppose changing the Comprehensive Plan and 
expressed concerns about a previous proposal 
near their property. 

Debbie and Bob Neudorfer October 2, 2020 Object to any re-interpretation of Comprehensive 
Plan that would allow Small Scale Recreation 
Tourist (SSRT) uses in areas zoned for 
Commercial Agriculture and expressed concerns 
about a previous proposal near their property. 

Comment submitted by 40 
community members. 

October 27, 2020 Do not support amending the Comprehensive 
Plan and ask that it prohibit new uses in areas 
zoned Commercial Agriculture.  Protect our 
agriculture zoned properties. 

Manson Community Council October 27, 2020 Do not believe there is any error in the existing 
Comprehensive Plan or County Code.  Existing 
zoning criteria is consistent and compatible with 
the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION – CPA 20-007 – SMALL SCALE RECREATIONAL TOURIST USES 
TEXT AMENDMENT 

Proposal: Chelan County has initiated a Comprehensive Plan text amendment to consider changes to 
Chapter 3 and 4 related to the allowances of small-scale recreational tourist activities in certain locations. 
Due to geographic limitations, it is common for rural areas to have isolated commercial or tourist activities.  
These areas provide residents and tourists with necessary services, reduce travel demands on limited 
roadways, and provide local areas with employment opportunities.  This proposed text amendment will 
allow the public to evaluate the Comprehensive Plan for consistency as to how to support new small-scale 
recreation or tourist uses. 
 
It is important to emphasize that the Comprehensive Plan is the tool that informs decisions and drives 
implementation of the Zoning Code, not vice versa.  Depending on how the proposed CPA text amendment 



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 3 of 8 

is resolved, changes to the zoning code may be appropriate.  Any changes to the Zoning Code must be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
The County land use designations are be grouped as Rural, LAMIRD, Resource and Urban Growth Area.  
Chapter 3 is the Rural Element of the Comprehensive Plan and addresses the siting criteria for Rural and 
LAMIRD designations that are implemented through the zoning map.  Chapter 4 is the Resource Element 
and addresses siting criteria for Resource designations.   
 
In each chapter, uses appropriate to each land use designation are listed.  In particular, such uses may 
include intensification of existing small scale recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or 
setting, but that do not include new residential component.  However, some of the siting criteria contains 
the language “or new development” of small-scale recreational or tourist uses.   
 
The table below shows how language is currently adopted and is also shown in Attachment 3 File of Record, 
along with background information.  The underlined language in italics and with strike-throughs shows how 
the text might be amended. 
 

Land Use 
Designation 

Current Language in Chapter 3, Rural Element Page No. 

RR20 intensification of existing small-scale recreational or tourist uses that rely 
on a rural location or setting, but that do not include a new residential 
component; 

7 

RR10, RR5, 
RR2.5, RP 

intensification of existing development or new development of small-scale 
recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or setting but that 
do not include a new residential component; 

8, 9, 10 

Type 1 
LAMIRD 

… are described as rural development consisting of existing and potential 
infill of commercial, industrial, residential, or mixed use, whether 
characterized as shoreline developments, villages, hamlets, rural activity 
centers, or crossroads developments. 

11 

Type 2 
LAMIRD 

…are an intensification of development on lots containing, or new 
development of, small-scale recreational or tourist uses, including 
commercial facilities to serve those recreational or tourist uses that rely on 
a rural location and setting. 

12 

RW (Type 1 
LAMIRD) 

intensification of existing development or new development infill, 
development, or redevelopment of existing areas of small-scale water 
related/water dependent recreational or tourist uses, including commercial 
facilities to serve those recreational or tourist uses, that rely on a rural 
location or setting but that do not include a new residential component; 

13 

RRR (Type 1 
LAMIRD) 

intensification of existing development or new development infill, 
development, or redevelopment of existing areas of small-scale 
recreational or tourist uses, including commercial facilities to serve those 
recreational or tourist uses, that rely on a rural location or setting but that 
do not include a new residential component; 

14 

RV (Type 1 
LAMIRD) 

intensification of infill, development, or redevelopment of existing areas of 
small-scale recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or 
setting but that do not include a new residential component; 

15 

RC (Type 1, 
2 and 3 
LAMIRD) 

…; tourist or recreational uses; 
 

16 

Land Use 
Designation 

Current Language in Chapter 4, Resource Element Page No. 

AC intensification of existing small-scale recreational or tourist uses that rely 
upon a rural setting but that do not include a new residential component; 

2 

FC intensification of existing development or the development of new small-
scale recreational or tourist uses that rely upon a rural setting but that do 
not include new residential development; 

13 



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 4 of 8 

 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Chelan County conducts an annual concurrent review of proposals to amend the Comprehensive Plan.  
The Plan represents the long-term vision for future land uses and development.  For the county-initiated 
text amendments, the merits of the requested change must be demonstrated as being consistent with 
adopted goals and policies.   
 
The following Comprehensive Plan policies are relevant to the proposed request for CPA 20-007: 
 
LU 1.5:  Encourage infill of vacant and underdeveloped land in existing residential areas within urban growth 

areas and rural communities, such as LAMIRDs. 
 
RE 2.3: Ensure that rural development (residential, commercial and industrial) near designated resource 

lands occurs in a manner that minimizes potential conflicts and reduces conversion of farm and 
forest land to non-resource uses. Develop mitigating measures to provide adequate protection 
against potential conflicts. 

RE 3.9: Allow the infill, development, and redevelopment of existing intensely developed rural areas where 
consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan, including recreational, residential, 
mixed-use, and shoreline developments. 

 
RE 6.1: Development in LAMIRDs, except for industrial areas or industrial sites within mixed- use areas, 

should be principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population. 
 
RE 6.2: Apply development standards in LAMIRDs to ensure the design of development or redevelopment 

is consistent with the character of the existing areas and the proposed use conforms to the intent 
of this Comprehensive Plan. 

 
AL 1.4: Conserve agricultural lands for productive economic use by identifying and designating agricultural 

resource lands whose principal and preferred land use is commercial agricultural resource 
management. 

 

REVIEW CRITERIA 

The proposals were analyzed based on information provided as background or when readily available, 
within existing County resources. While each application may or may not have met all the criteria, the 
applications must be weighed by their individual and collective impacts. Additionally, agency and public 
comment play a role in understanding how the amendment may advance the Comprehensive Plan goals 
and policies and how it may serve the general public’s interest.   
 
Pursuant to Chelan County Code (CCC) Section 14.14.047, the following general review criteria were used 
to evaluate the proposed text amendment. Agency and public comments have been incorporated as 
appropriate.  
 
1. The proposal is necessary to address a public land use issue or problem; and  
 

Finding of Fact: The proposed text amendment considers appropriate locations for small scale 
recreation or tourist activities. Some land use categories allow “intensification” of existing small-scale 
recreation or tourist uses while other categories allow “new” small scale recreation or tourist uses. The 
Comprehensive Plan description for Rural Waterfront (RW), Rural Recreational/Residential (RRR) and 
Rural Village (RV) designations, which are Type 1 LAMIRDs, allow for the “intensification of 
development”. However, this is the statutory language for Type 2 LAMIRDs and should be amended to 
be consistent with the law. Type 1 LAMIRDS may not allow for intensification of existing uses. 



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 5 of 8 

 
Conclusion: The proposed text amendment will allow the public to evaluate the Comprehensive Plan 
for consistency as to how to support new small-scale recreation or tourist uses. 
 

2. The proposed amendment is consistent with the requirements of the Washington State Growth 
Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW as amended) and any applicable county-wide planning 
policies; and  

 
Finding of Fact: The Growth Management Act allows counties to plan for isolated pockets of more 
intense development in the rural area. These are referred to in the Act as LAMIRDs.  Existing LAMIRD 
designations in the Comprehensive Plan are updated as necessary to be consistent with the Growth 
Management Act (GMA) provisions for Rural Elements in RCW 36.70A.070(5) and Washington 
Administrative Code (WAC) 365-196-425. 
 
The GMA permits the development, redevelopment and infill of existing intensely developed rural areas 
known as Type 1 LAMIRDs although new development may occur in some Type 2 and 3 LAMIRDs. 
Type 1 LAMIRDs are isolated areas that may be characterized as shoreline development, villages, 
hamlets, rural activity centers, or crossroads developments.   
 
To be consistent with the GMA provisions for Type 1 LAMIRDs, the recommended text change to 
Chapters 3 would specifically replace “intensification of existing development or new development” with 
“infill, development, or redevelopment of existing areas” of small-scale recreation or tourist uses within 
the Rural Waterfront (RW) and Rural Recreational/Residential (RRR) land use designations/siting 
criteria; and would replace “intensification of existing” with “infill, development, or redevelopment of 
existing areas” of small-scale recreation or tourist uses within the Rural Village (RV) land use 
designations/siting criteria. 
 
Also, for consistency with GMA provisions concerning agricultural resource lands, no text changes are 
recommended to Chapter 4, related to the allowances of small-scale recreational tourist activities, 
specifically in the Commercial Agricultural (AC) land use designations/siting criteria.  

Agency comments from the Department of Commerce explain that the Chelan County LAMIRD 
designations must be consistent with GMA laws (RCWs) and administrative rules (WACs). The Rural 
Recreational/Residential (RRR) and Rural Village (RV) designations are listed as Type 1 LAMIRDs. 
The comprehensive plan description for both designations; however, Commerce advises that this is the 
statutory language for Type 2 LAMIRDs and should be amended to be consistent with the law. Type 1 
LAMIRDS may not allow for intensification of existing uses. 

County-wide Planning Policies provide guidance to coordinated planning with the public and other 
affected jurisdictions. 
 
Conclusion: The proposal would be consistent with the GMA goals and with County-wide Planning 
Policies.  

 
3. The text amendment complies with or supports the comprehensive plan’s goals and policies, or how 

amendment of the plan’s goals or policies is supported by changing conditions or state or federal 
mandates; and 

 
Finding of Fact: The recommended text amendment to Chapter 3 would support Policies LU 1.5, RE 
3.9, RE 6.1. and RE 6.2.  Many vacant and underdeveloped parcels of land are available within existing 
intensely developed rural areas that can accommodate further infill or redevelopment. Infill within these 
areas will allow public facilities and services to be provided in a more efficient manner.  LAMIRDs 
include a provision that these areas serve primarily the existing and projected rural population, generally 
to ensure rural sprawl does not occur where inappropriate. Requiring infill or redevelopment within 
LAMIRD designations to match the character of the existing areas ensure that the County remains 
consistent with the requirements of the Growth Management Act with respect to LAMIRD designations. 
 



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 6 of 8 

The recommendation for no text changes to Chapter 4 would support Policy RE 2.3. The close proximity 
of rural lands to resource lands is unavoidable. The presence of these resource activities such 
agricultural production adds to the character of these rural lands. However, many activities which take 
place on these agricultural resource lands are not compatible with other activities, especially residential 
uses. The conservation of these resource lands may be jeopardized by development which is not 
sensitive to the activities that characterize a resource-based land use; therefore, adding “new 
development” of small-scale recreational tourist uses would not be consistent with the GMA or 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies.   
 
Conclusion: As recommended by staff, the text amendment to Chapter 3 would be consistent with and 
support the goals and policies of the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan; and no text changes to 
Chapter 4 would also be consistent with and support the goals and policies of the Chelan County 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
4. The amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term commercial 

significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated; and 
 

Finding of Fact:  The GMA and implementing WACs provide specific guidance for counties to follow 
with regard to land uses that may impact agricultural production.  The Chelan County comprehensive 
plan allows for the intensification of existing small-scale recreational tourist uses on Agricultural 
Commercial (AC) resource lands, but does not allow new recreational tourist uses. New small-scale 
tourist or recreation uses may be appropriate on designated forest land provided it meets the goals and 
intent of the comprehensive plan, GMA and implementing WACs. 

Agency comments emphasize that development regulations must prevent the conversion of all 
designated resources lands to uses that removes lands from resource production. Additionally, WAC 
365-196-815(1)(b)(i) specifically states that development regulations must not allow primary use of 
agricultural resource lands that would convert those lands to non-resource purposes.  

Numerous public comments expressed opposition to any re-interpretation of Comprehensive Plan text 
that would allow Small Scale Recreation Tourist (SSRT) uses in areas zoned for Commercial 
Agriculture (AC). 

Conclusion: As recommended by staff, the text amendment to Chapter 3 and no text changes to 
Chapter 4 would not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 

 
5. The proposed amendment would serve the interests of not only the applicant, but the public as a whole, 

including health, safety or welfare.  
 

Finding of Fact: The overarching objectives of the GMA and the County, with respect to rural land uses, 
are to protect rural character and to maintain the economic viability of agriculture, forestry and mining. 
Two critical factors of public interest to consider when evaluating changes to the Rural Land Use 
Element and designated commercial resource lands are: 1) Are the changes consistent with rural 
character as defined by the County? and 2) Will the changes interfere with resource lands production? 
 
The proposed text amendment to Chapter 3 would be consistent with the Chelan County’s rural 
character, where a pattern of rural living with larger lot sizes used for residential living and often 
agricultural activities or clustered lots with large areas of protected open space. Rural character 
includes isolated pockets of more intense commercial and recreational development.   Making no 
changes to Chapter 4 would avoid interference with resource land production. 
 
Conclusion: As recommended by staff, the text amendment to Chapter 3 and no text changes to 
Chapter 4 would serve the public interest. 

 
 
 



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 7 of 8 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1 .  Chelan County adopted Title 14, Development Permit Procedures and Administration outlining 

provisions relating to the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan consistent with RCW 36.70A. The 
County followed the procedures required for amendment of the Comprehensive Plan. 

2 .  Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and Chelan County 
Code outline provisions relating to the adoption and amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. The 
County used the applicable guidelines and regulatory review criteria for each amendment. 

3 .  RCW 36.70A.210 requires that the Comprehensive Plan be consistent with the provisions of the 
adopted County-Wide Planning Policies. 

4 .  The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act, and WAC 197-11 SEPA Rules 
have been satisfied. The proposed Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment is exempt per WAC 197-11-
800(19)(b). 

5 .  The required State agency review with the Department of Commerce (COM) and other State agencies 
initiated on September 17, 2020, submittal ID No. 2020-S-1793 (Attachment 2), pursuant to RCW 
36.70A.106.   

6 .  A request for a Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment was submitted by Chelan County has initiated 
a Comprehensive Plan text amendment to consider changes to Chapter 3 and 4 related to the 
allowances of small-scale recreational tourist activities in certain locations.  
a. As recommended by staff, the proposed changes are consistent with the Chelan County 

Comprehensive Plan as outlined in this staff report.  
 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
1 .  The amendments to the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan are consistent with the requirements of 

the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and County-Wide 
Planning Policies. 

2 .  The amendments are necessary to address a public land use issue or problem. 
3 .  The amendments do not adversely affect designated resource lands of long-term commercial 

significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 
4 .  Reviewing agencies and the general public were given an opportunity to comment on the proposed 

amendments. 
5 .  The amendments are consistent with Chelan County Code Title 14 Development Permit Procedures 

and Administration. 
6 .  The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act and WAC 197-11 SEPA Rules 

have been satisfied. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The Chelan County Planning Commission may make a motion to recommend approval or denial of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments to the Chelan County Board of County Commissioners, 
pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050.  Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 
which may be modified, are included in this staff report.   

Staff recommends Options 1 and 2 below: 
 
Option 1:  Move to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change Chapter 4 related 

to the allowances for small-scale recreational tourist activities, specifically in the Commercial 
Agricultural (AC) land use designations/siting criteria, given file number CPA 20-007, based upon 
the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within the November 18, 2020 staff report. 

 
Option 2: Move to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change Chapter 3, 

specifically by replacing “intensification of existing development or new development” with “infill, 
development, or redevelopment of existing areas” for small-scale recreation or tourist uses within 
the Rural Waterfront (RW) and Rural Recreational/Residential (RRR) land use 
designations/siting criteria; and by replacing “intensification of existing” with “infill, development, 



   

CPA 20-007 Staff Report 2020 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Page 8 of 8 

or redevelopment of existing areas” for small-scale recreation or tourist uses within the Rural 
Village (RV) land use designations/siting criteria, given file number CPA 20-007, based upon the 
findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within the November 18, 2020 staff report.  

 
Option 3: Move to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change Chapter 3 and 

Chapter 4 related to the allowances for small-scale recreational tourist activities, and direct Staff 
to conduct additional research on Type 1 and Type 2 Limited Areas of More Intensive Rural 
Development (LAMIRDs) for consistency with the intent of the Growth Management Act (GMA) 
and with guidance in the Washington Administrative Code (WAC); and if necessary, bring back 
recommended language changes to the Comprehensive Plan and Chelan County Code in next 
year’s docket. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Agency Comment dated November 5, 2020 from the WA Dept. of Commerce 
2. 60-day Review Acknowledgment Letter from WA Dept. of Commerce 
3. File of Record for CPA 20-007  



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE    PO Box 42525    Olympia, Washington 98504-2525    (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 

November 5, 2020 

Ms. Catherine Lorbeer, AICP 
Assistant Director 
Chelan County Community Development 
316 Washington Street, Suite 301 
Wenatchee, Washington  98801 

Sent Via Electronic Mail 

Re:  Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

Dear Ms. Lorbeer: 

Thank you for sending Growth Management Services Chelan County’s proposed 2020 
Comprehensive Plan amendments.  We appreciate the opportunity to provide the following 
comments. 

CPA-2020-001, 004 and 005 
The Department of Commerce has significant concerns about these proposed amendments, 
which, if adopted, are clear violations of Washington State’s Growth Management Act (GMA). 

The GMA was amended in 1997 to provide flexibility in comprehensive plans for economic 
development while maintaining rural character.  The amendments allowed counties to identify 
limited areas of more intense rural development (LAMIRDs), which are areas of higher intensity 
residential, mixed use, commercial or industrial development.1 LAMIRDs are typically rural 
hamlets, crossroads, lakeshore development or unincorporated burghs with smaller residential lot 
sizes, businesses and services. 

When designating LAMIRDs, counties must “adopt measures to minimize and contain the 
existing areas or uses of areas of more intensive rural development”.2  The law is very specific in 
limiting LAMIRDs to the existing development patterns on the landscape as they existed on July 
1, 1990.3  This is primarily determined by the built environment at that time.  A core function of 
LAMIRDS is a logical outer boundary that does not allow for expansion of low-density rural 
sprawl. 

1 RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d) 
2 RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d)(iv) 
3 RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d)(v) 

CPA 20-007 
ATTACHMENT 1 
WA Commerce 
Comments



Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 2 
 
Each of the proposed amendments violate the very strict GMA LAMIRD requirements.  They 
are clear expansions that will result in irregular LAMIRD boundaries and low-density rural 
sprawl. 
 
CPA 2020-003 
This amendment proposes to change approximately 8 acres of land from designated agricultural 
resource lands of long-term commercial significance (AC) to rural residential (RR 2.5).  The 
subject property appears to include a productive vineyard, winery and residence, all permitted 
uses in the AC zone.  The following comments are nearly identical to those provided during last 
years’ annual comprehensive plan amendment process for a similar proposal, which was 
appealed to the Growth Management Hearings Board.  The Hearings Board decision on the 
appeal is pending. 
 
Agriculture is a cornerstone of the state economy and the GMA has strong provisions to protect 
natural resource lands.  The market value of agricultural products sold in Chelan County was 
$258,434,000 as of the 2017 Agricultural Census.4  The agriculture industry in Washington State 
constitutes 13% of our total economy, is a $49 billion industry, and one of Commerce’s key 
sectors for economic growth.  Although this proposal only involves approximately 8 acres of 
land, the continued “chipping away” at productive agricultural lands could have long-term, 
negative effects on agricultural viability in Chelan County. 
 
The GMA requires counties to designate and conserve resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance.5 Counties “should not review resource lands designations solely on a parcel-by-
parcel process”.6  Once the county establishes a willingness to “de-designate” productive 
resource lands, it will be increasingly difficult to resist future applications.  Over time, 
cumulative loss of resource lands could impact agricultural viability and Chelan County’s 
economy. 
 
WAC 365-190-050 includes criteria to classify and designate commercial resource lands, 
including the following that are particularly relevant to the proposal: 
 

- Lands that are currently used for agricultural production and lands that are capable of 
such use must be evaluated for designation. 

- The intent of the landowner to use land for agriculture or cease such use is not the 
controlling factor in determining if land is used or capable of being used for 
agricultural production.  

 
If Chelan County has concerns about the current designation of agricultural lands, we 
recommend the County conduct a comprehensive assessment of natural resource lands 
designations on a countywide or regional basis during your next periodic update process, rather 
than a parcel-by-parcel basis. 
 
                                                           
4 United States Department of Agriculture 
5 RCW 36.70A.050 and .060 
6 WAC 365-190-050 



Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 3 
 
Chelan County’s Comprehensive Plan provides guidance for designating commercial agricultural 
land and any de-designation process should use the same criteria in deciding whether to retain or 
change to another comprehensive plan land use category.7  The commercial agriculture 
designation should be retained unless it no longer meets the criteria identified in the countywide 
assessment. 
 
The application expresses concern about the non-conforming lot size limiting the ability to use 
the property.  Subdividing the parcel is the only limit currently, as the minimum lot size is 10 
acres in the AC zone.  Chelan County Code allows all structures and uses identified in the AC 
land use matrix to be established or constructed on legal lots of record.8 
 
CPA-20-007 
The proposed text amendment considers appropriate locations for small scale recreation or 
tourist activities. Some Land Use categories allow “intensification” of existing small scale 
recreation or tourist uses while other categories allow “new” small scale recreation or tourist 
uses.  
 
Two critical things to consider when evaluating changes to the Rural Land Use Element and 
designated commercial resource lands: 
 

 Are the changes consistent with rural character as defined by the County? 
 Will the changes interfere with resource lands production? 

 
With regard to rural land use, the overarching objectives of the GMA and the County are to 
protect rural character and to maintain the economic viability of agriculture, forestry and mining. 
 
The GMA and implementing WACs provides specific guidance for designating Limited Areas of 
More Intense Rural Development (LAMIRD)9.  Three types of LAMIRDS are described as 
follows: 
 

Type 1:  Shoreline development, villages, hamlets activity centers or crossroad 
development that allow for “infill, development or redevelopment of existing areas”. 
Development or redevelopment may be allowed “provided it is consistent with the 
character of existing area “in terms of building size, scale, use and intensity”. 
 
Type 2:  Small-scale recreation uses through redevelopment of an existing site, 
intensification of an existing site, or new development on a previously undeveloped site, 
but not new residential development.  Small-scale recreation uses may be added as 
accessory uses for resource-based industries.  For accessory uses on agricultural lands of 
long-term agricultural significance, see WAC 365-196-815. 
 

                                                           
7 Chelan County Comprehensive Plan – Resource Element 
8 CCC Chapter 11.97.020 -  Nonconforming lots of record 
 9 RCW 36.70A.070 and WAC 365-196-425 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-815
http://www.co.chelan.wa.us/files/community-development/documents/comps_plan/2017%20Comp%20Plan/Attachment%20A%20-%202017-27%20Comprehensive%20Plan.pdf
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/html/Chelco11/Chelco1197.html
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-425


Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 4 
 

Type 3:  Isolated small-scale business and cottage industries that are not principally 
designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and nonresidential uses, but 
do provide job opportunities through intensification of development on existing lots or 
undeveloped sites.  Counties are not required to designate Type 3 LAMIRDs on the 
future land use map and may allow them as a conditional use subject to GMA statutory 
criteria. 

 
Chelan County LAMIRD designations must be consistent with GMA laws (RCWs) and 
administrative rules (WACs). The Rural Recreational/Residential (RRR) and Rural Village (RV) 
designations are listed as Type 1 LAMIRDs.  The comprehensive plan description for both 
designations allow for the “intensification of development on lots containing, or development of, 
small-scale recreational or tourist uses…”.  This is the statutory language for Type 2 LAMIRDs 
and should be amended to be consistent with the law. Type 1 LAMIRDS may not allow for 
intensification of existing uses. 
 
The Chelan County comprehensive plan allows for the intensification of existing small scale 
recreational tourist uses on Agricultural Commercial (AC) resource lands, but does not allow 
new recreational tourist uses.  Conversely, the Forest Commercial (FC) allows development of 
new small scale recreational or tourist uses.  While it may appear that this is an inconsistency 
that should be corrected, the GMA and implementing WACs provide specific guidance for 
counties to follow with regard to land uses that may impact agricultural production. 
 
Development regulations must prevent the conversion of all designated resources lands to uses 
that removes lands from resource production.  However, WAC 365-196-815(1)(b)(i) specifically 
states that development regulations must not allow primary use of agricultural resource lands that 
would convert those lands to non-resource purposes.  Further, accessory uses on agricultural 
resource lands may be allowed, consistent with criteria listed in WAC 365-196-815(3)(c).  Non-
agricultural accessory uses must support or add value to agricultural production. 
 
New small-scale tourist or recreation uses may be appropriate on designated forest land provided 
it meets the goals and intent of the comprehensive plan, GMA and implementing WACs. 
Prospective tourist or recreation uses must not interfere with the conservation of those lands or 
the production of timber. 
 
Please keep in mind that the comprehensive plan establishes land use policy and zoning 
regulations implement those policies.  Any changes to the comprehensive plan would then 
trigger a review and potential amendments to zoning regulations to ensure consistency between 
policy and regulation. 
 
Given the complexity of the issue, we recommend that the County take more time to consider 
amendments to the comprehensive plan text.  This will allow staff to conduct research and 
prepare draft language for the public, the Planning Commission and County Commissioner’s 
consideration.  It would also allow for a concurrent zoning text amendment process that will 
ensure consistency between the comprehensive plan and development regulations. 
 



Ms. Catherine Lorbeer 
November 5, 2020 
Page 5 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposal.  If you have any questions or need 
technical assistance with any growth management issues, please feel free to contact me at 
scott.kuhta@commerce.wa.gov, or 509-795-6884. 
 
Sincerely, 

  
Scott Kuhta, AICP 
Senior Planner 
Growth Management Services 
 
cc:  Jim Brown, CD Director, Chelan County 

Steve Roberge, Deputy Managing Director, Growth Management Services 
Dave Andersen, Managing Director, Growth Management Services 

mailto:scott.kuhta@commerce.wa.gov


09/17/2020

Ms. Catherine Lorbeer
Assistant Director
Chelan County
316 Washington Street Suite 301
Wenatchee, WA 98801

Sent Via Electronic Mail

Re: Chelan County--2020-S-1793--60-day Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment

Dear Ms. Lorbeer:

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the 60-day 
Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment as required under RCW 36.70A.106.  We received your 
submittal with the following description.

1) Rural Residential/Recreational 5 acres and Rural Residential/Recreational 10 acres to
Rural Recreational/Residential; 2) Commercial Agricultural Lands to Rural
Residential/Recreational 2.5 acres; 3) Rural Residential/Recreational 5 acres to Rural
Village; 4) Rural Residential/Recreational 5 acres to Rural Village; 5) Chapter 3 and 4
related to small-scale recreational tourist activities

We received your submittal on 09/17/2020 and processed it with the Submittal ID 2020-S-1793. 
Please keep this letter as documentation that you have met this procedural requirement.  Your 
60-day notice period ends on 11/16/2020.

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies for comment.

Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment to Commerce within ten days of 
adoption.

If you have any questions, please contact Growth Management Services at 
reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov, or call Scott Kuhta, (509) 795-6884.

Sincerely,

Review Team
Growth Management Services

STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
1011 Plum Street SE � PO Box 42525 � Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 � (360) 725-4000

www.commerce.wa.gov

Page: 1 of 1

CPA 20-007
ATTACHMENT 2
60-day Review

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.106
mailto:%20reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov


Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 1 of 17  

 

 

I. Introduction 

The Growth Management Act (GMA) requires a Rural Element in the County’s comprehensive plan. The 
Rural Element contains goals and policies to guide the development of rural land including the 
identification of the general types of uses to be permitted. Rural lands are all lands not designated for 
urban growth, or agriculture, forest or mineral resource lands. 

The GMA recommends providing for a variety of residential 
densities at levels that are consistent with the preservation 
of rural character and the requirements of the Rural 
Element. The Rural Element provides guidance on 
appropriate land uses and densities for Chelan County’s 
rural areas. Rural governmental services should be provided 
at a level necessary to support and sustain the land use 
pattern planned for rural areas. Rural governmental services 
should not provide the level of service which promotes 
growth or sprawl in rural areas. The Growth Management 
Act provides the following definitions of rural development, 
rural character and rural governmental services: 

A. Rural development refers to development outside 
the urban growth area and outside agricultural, 
forest, and mineral resource lands designated 
pursuant to RCW 36.70A.170. Rural development 
can consist of a variety of uses and residential 
densities, including clustered residential 
development, at levels that are consistent with the 
preservation of rural character and the 
requirements of the rural element. Rural 
development does not refer to agriculture or 
forestry activities that may be conducted in rural 
areas. 

B. Rural governmental services or rural services include those public services and public facilities 
historically and typically delivered at an intensity usually found in rural areas, and may include 
domestic water systems, fire and police protection services, transportation and public transit 
services, and other public utilities associated with rural development and normally not 
associated with urban areas. Rural services do not include storm or sanitary sewers, except as 
otherwise authorized by RCW 36.70A.110(4). 

C. Rural character refers to the patterns of land use and development established by a county in 
the rural element of its comprehensive plan: 

1. In which open space, the natural landscape, and vegetation predominate over the built 
environment; 

2. That foster traditional rural lifestyles, rural-based economies, and opportunities to both 
live and work in rural areas; 

Chapter 3 RURAL ELEMENT 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 2 of 17  

3. That provide visual landscapes that are traditionally found in rural areas and 
communities; 

4. That reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low- 
density development; 

5. That generally do not require the extension of urban governmental services; and 

6. That are consistent with the protection of natural surface water flows and ground water 
and surface water recharge and discharge areas. 

II. Intent 

It is the intent of this Rural Element to preserve the rural character and way of life in the rural area, and 
to protect private property rights while considering impacts to the environment of Chelan County. 

As noted in the Land Use Element, the majority of land within the County is in Federal or State 
ownership, and is therefore considered unbuildable within the planning horizon of this plan. 

As documented in the Parks and Recreation Element, the Federal and State lands provide the County 
with one of the largest rural and natural park lands, these include: Glacier Peak Wilderness, Lake Chelan 
Sawtooth Wilderness, Wenatchee National Forest, Alpine Lakes Wilderness, Henry M Jackson 
Wilderness, North Cascades National Park and Lake Chelan National Recreation Area. These very large 
wilderness and park areas are not expected to develop but rather enhance the character of the County 
as a recreation and natural resource to locals and visitors. 

In addition to Chelan County’s rural character being dominated by park lands, Chelan County has a 
history of agricultural uses - primarily orchards of various sizes, residential rural living; forest practices, 
rural industrial activities, mining and small town settlements. Over the last ten years, some areas have 
transitioned to vineyards, wineries, smaller-scale agricultural production and agricultural and 
recreational tourism. 

Within the Land Use Element each region of the County has been defined by the unique characteristics 
and rural character, including innovative tools for development. The goals and policies in the Rural 
Element are to guide land use activities in and surrounding rural lands. Goals and policies have been 
developed for the preservation of the rural character by: 

• Containing or otherwise controlling rural development; 

• Assuring visual compatibility of rural development with the surrounding rural area; 

• Reducing the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low-density 
development in the rural area; 

• Protection of critical areas, surface water and ground water resources; and, 
• Protecting against conflicts with the use of agricultural, forest, and mineral resource lands of 

long-term commercial significance, see Resource Element. 

The County land use designations can be grouped as Rural, 
LAMIRD, Resource and Urban Growth Area. This Element 
addresses the siting criteria and Goals and Policies of the Rural 
and LAMIRD designations. Additionally, each designation is 
broadly defined with intended uses and densities under the siting 
criteria. Services for the rural lands are addressed in the Capital 
Facilities and Utilities Elements. 

 

Rural designations include: Rural 

Residential/Resource 2.5, 5, 10 and 20 

LAMIRD designations include: Rural 

Waterfront; Rural; Rural Village; Rural 

Recreational/Residential; Rural 

Commercial; and, Rural Industrial 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 3 of 17  

III. Goals and Policies – Rural Designations 

Rationale: Residents who choose to live in the rural areas need to realize that their lifestyle has 
an impact on the natural environment and efforts need to be made to find and maintain a 
balance between human activity and the natural environment. 

Policy RE 1.1: Rural development shall avoid and mitigate impacts to critical areas, which have value 
as wildlife habitat and open space. 

Rationale: Wildlife habitat and open space are all land uses which are typically located in rural 
areas and are an important part of the reason why people choose to live in a rural setting. 
Therefore, development may occur when suitable mitigation is provided to address impacts to 
Critical Areas existing in rural lands. 

Policy RE 1.2: Uses not specifically addressed or prohibited in the comprehensive plan are not 
automatically allowed and should be reviewed on their own merits for compatibility with existing 
goals and policies. 

Rationale: Should there be a new land use or an innovative technique towards the management 
of growth, they can be reviewed during the annual review process to analyze their compatibility 
with existing goals and policies of the plan. 

Policy RE 1.3: Establish a variety of rural land use designations that would accommodate a wide 
variety of rural uses and densities consistent with the County’s rural character. 

Rationale: The rural areas of Chelan County contain a variety of land uses and densities that 
comprise the rural character of the area. Continuing this pattern, will help to maintain and 
enhance this rural character. 

Policy RE 1.4: Essential public facilities and/or services should be sited and developed in a manner 
that maintains the rural character of the area. Essential public facilities and/or services are 
appropriate for location in rural areas when suitable mitigation is provided. 

Rationale: Essential public facilities and/or services should not compromise the goal of the Rural 
Lands. 

 Goal RE 2: Maintain natural environment features that support and enhance natural resource-based  
 economic activities, wildlife habitats, traditional rural lifestyles, outdoor recreation, and open space.  

Rationale: There is value in rural lands that have in the economic vitality, rural lifestyles, and 
healthy environments. 

Policy RE 2.1: Review rural development applications to determine the potential for groundwater 
contamination. 

Rationale: Preventing groundwater contamination is necessary to avoid exorbitant costs, 
hardships, and potential physical harm. 

Policy RE 2.2: Rural development should not preclude use of rural lands for agriculture and timber 
production and should avoid or mitigate impacts on existing agriculture or timber operations. 

Rationale: Productive agriculture and timber lands exist in the rural areas. Potential negative 
impacts to these lands from more intense land uses should be avoided through the application 
of appropriate mitigation measures and/or the use of innovative techniques. 

Goal RE 1: Maintain a balance between human uses and the natural environment in rural areas of the 

County. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 4 of 17  

Policy RE 2.3: Ensure that rural development (residential, commercial and industrial) near 
designated resource lands occurs in a manner that minimizes potential conflicts and reduces 
conversion of farm and forest land to non-resource uses. Develop mitigating measures to provide 
adequate protection against potential conflicts. 

Rationale: The close proximity of rural lands to resource lands is unavoidable. The presence of 
these resource activities such as forests and agricultural production adds to the character of 
these rural lands. However, many activities which take place on these resource lands are not 
compatible with other activities, especially residential uses. Since the conservation of these 
resource lands may be jeopardized by development which is not sensitive to the activities that 
characterize a resource based land use; it is important to provide mitigating measures that will 
provide an adequate transition area between potentially conflicting land uses. 

Policy RE 2.4: Encourage the preservation and protection of unique, rare and fragile natural 
features, scenic vistas, unstable bluffs, and culturally significant features. 

Rationale: These features contribute to the character and attractiveness of the rural area. Their 
preservation enhances the openness and aesthetic quality of the area. The use of voluntary 
incentives including the Chelan County Public Benefit Rating System used in evaluating 
applications for current use taxation of property under the Open Space Program and clustering 
provisions will help to encourage the preservation and protection of these areas. 

Policy RE 2.5: When open space areas are provided in a development, provisions shall be made to 
identify: who owns the open space, what uses or activities will be permitted on it, how the area will 
be maintained, and whether public access will be provided. This information shall be contained on 
the face of the plat. 

Rationale: One of the drawbacks of providing open space is determining how it should be 
managed. It is important to establish this at the design stage so everyone is clear on their 
responsibilities. When the information is noted on the face of the plat, all subsequent property 
owners will be aware of the open space provisions. 

Policy RE 2.6: To achieve a variety of rural densities and uses, allow for development clustering, 
density transfer, design guidelines, conservation easements, and other innovative techniques to 
accommodate growth consistent with rural character. 

Rationale: The amount of privately owned developable land in the County is limited. Innovative 
techniques can provide for rural development while protecting the rural character of the 
County. 

Policy RE 2.7: Protect local environmental and visual resources in hillside areas by encouraging 
development to locate on existing benches and terraces and by applying appropriate development 
standards and performance criteria. 

Rationale: Hillside residential development offers a number of potential advantages, if properly 
established. If hillsides are to be both used and enjoyed by present and future residents of the 
area, development policies must include soundly based standards and performance criteria, yet 
have sufficient flexibility to fit varied environmental conditions. 

Policy RE 2.8: Protect hillside areas from erosion by requiring development to adequately capture 
storm drainage and avoid duplication of road systems. 

Rationale: Road cuts impact on the visual quality of hillsides and are a source of erosion and 
shall be minimized. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 5 of 17  

 

Goal Rationale: Development in rural areas should not be at densities which require urban 
levels of service. Development at lower densities will also help protect the rural quality of life. 

Policy RE 3.1: Provide government services in non-urban areas at a limited level appropriate to the 
rural setting, including police, fire, roads, and general utilities. 

Rationale: Limited public facilities and services will be provided to persons living and working in 
rural areas. Urban levels of services should not extend beyond urban growth areas, except 
where provided for under the Growth Management Act. 

Policy RE 3.2: Permit development of rural areas adjacent to urban growth areas at densities that 
will allow for orderly extension of urban utilities and services as urban growth areas expand in the 
future. 

Rationale: Land that is immediately adjacent to an urban growth area is unique in that it has a 
greater potential to eventually develop at higher densities. Therefore, it is appropriate that 
these lands develop at an appropriate rural density so that when they do obtain the opportunity 
to develop in an UGA, they will permit the orderly extension of public utilities. 

Policy RE 3.3: Promote orderly expansion of urban facilities and infrastructure by including rural 
areas adjacent to urban growth areas with capital facilities and transportation plans. These plans 
should try to anticipate, where appropriate, where future additional infrastructure and facilities will 
be sited. 

Rationale: Anticipation of future siting needs for facilities and infrastructure will help ensure the 
orderly expansion of urban growth areas. 

Policy RE 3.4: Promote use of innovative site designs that employ alternatives to conventional on- 
lot wastewater disposal systems. 

Rationale: Innovative site designs can take advantage of alternative wastewater systems such as 
community drain-fields within open space areas which may be effective in reducing potential 
failures and contamination of water sources. 

Policy RE 3.5: Where consistent with State and local requirements, encourage innovative site 
designs that utilize community water systems. 

Rationale: Innovative site designs can provide an affordable option for rural residential 
development since many of the site improvement costs and restrictions associated with 
individual wells can be distributed equally between all the home sites. 

Policy RE 3.6: Develop fire protection standards for all commercial, industrial and residential 
development in rural areas, including, but not limited to, use of fire retardant building materials, 
access to on-site water bodies (lake, ponds, cisterns, pools, etc), and firewise vegetation removal or 
fire breaks. 

Rationale: Rural development depends upon adequate safety standards to protect life and 
property in rural areas. 

Policy RE 3.7: Seek input from rural fire districts and the County Fire Marshal on design standards 
for adequate ingress and egress to new developments to address fire safety issues. 

Rationale: To provide adequate escape routes for residents and emergency vehicles. 

Goal RE 3: Develop at densities such that demands will not be created for urban levels of public 

services and facilities in rural areas. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 6 of 17  

Policy RE 3.8: Appropriate rural densities and designations should be applied which maintain the 
rural character, accommodate rural population projections and can be provided with rural services 
within the constraints of the County Budget and Capital Facility Plan. 

Rationale: In order to plan for and fund the proper size and extent of supporting public 
facilities, utilities and services, the density and extent of future development areas must be 
specified. 

Policy RE 3.9: Allow the infill, development, and redevelopment of existing intensely developed 
rural areas where consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan, including 
recreational, residential, mixed-use, and shoreline developments. 

Rationale: Rural recreational developments provide the opportunity for residential 
development, multiple uses of a recreational area, and innovative techniques to meet the needs 
and desires of the public to live and recreate in rural areas, with access or close proximity to 
natural amenities. 

Policy RE 3.10: Necessary public facilities and public services may be provided for the development, 
infill, and redevelopment of existing intensely developed residential, mixed use, shoreline, 
commercial and industrial areas outside of urban growth areas. Provision of such services shall not 
be provided in a manner which permits low density sprawl outside of the boundary of the 
designation area. 

Rationale: This policy recognizes the existence of intensely developed areas in rural lands and 
provides for the provision of necessary public facilities and services. 

 

Rationale: The comprehensive plan provides for a range of rural economic activities including: 
rural agriculture, forestry, and mineral resource industries as well as a range of rural 
development opportunities consistent with the Growth Management Act. 

Policy RE 4.1: Permit rural development of small scale recreational, tourist, and resort uses that rely 
on a rural location and setting, including commercial facilities to serve such uses, provided they do 
not include new residential development and are otherwise consistent with other goals and policies 
of this plan. 

Rationale: These uses are appropriate in rural areas when it can be demonstrated that they are 
compatible with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan. Public services and public 
facilities shall be limited to those necessary to serve the recreational or tourist use and shall be 
provided in a manner that does not permit low density sprawl. 

Policy RE 4.2: Additional commercial centers or activities may be considered in existing rural activity 
centers, villages, hamlets, or crossroad developments in the rural area during the yearly amendment 
process for the comprehensive plan when consistent with RCW 36.70A.070(5) and the goals and 
policies of the comprehensive plan. 

Rationale: Limited commercial development may be appropriate in some rural areas to meet 
the needs of residents and visitors. 

Policy RE 4.5: Encourage new visitor facilities and services, consistent with the national mandate for 
recreation and visitors in the Lake Chelan National Recreation Area and in coordination with the 
General Management Plan for the Lake Chelan National Recreation Area. 

Goal RE 4: Encourage rural economic development consistent with the goals and policies of the 

Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and the Growth Management Act. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 7 of 17  

Rationale: Growth of the state and all associated areas indicates increased visitor use for 
Stehekin. Tastefully constructed and environmentally sensitive installations to support the 
increased number of visitors are required and desired. 

Policy RE 4.6: MPRs may be considered within rural areas when consistent with the provisions of 
the comprehensive plan and RCW 36.70A.360. 

Rationale RCW 36.70A.040 requires all land use regulations to be consistent with and implement 
the adopted comprehensive plan. 

 

Policy RE 5.1: Encourage public awareness and removal of noxious weeds through the Chelan 
County Noxious Weed Department and Control Board. 

 

 
IV. Designations/Siting Criteria – Rural: 

The following designations apply to the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan through the zoning 
map. The following purpose and locational guidelines provide a basic understanding of the zoning 
districts intent and how they relate to the Comprehensive Plan designations, see the Land Use Element. 

 

A. RR20, RURAL RESIDENTIAL/RESOURCE: 1 DWELLING UNIT PER 20 ACRES 

Purpose: To allow for low intensity rural development, agricultural and forestry uses which do not 
require the extension of services or infrastructure. These areas provide greater opportunities for 
protecting sensitive environmental areas and creating open space typical of a rural setting. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: open space; residential; agriculture; and forestry. Additional 
uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance 
standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: natural resource support facilities and services; mineral 
resource activities; intensification of existing small scale recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural 
location or setting, but that do not include a new residential component; intensification of development 
on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential uses; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and 
community facilities. 

Density: One (1) dwelling unit per twenty (20) acres. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics. These areas tend to be remote or have been 
historically rural in character. Soil characteristics, steep slopes or other physical constraints to 
development may be present. Large tracts of undeveloped, open space exist. 

2. Natural Resources. The area may have agricultural or forest land practices of both small scale 
and/or commercial significance. The area may also be adjacent to designated resource lands. 

3. Public Services. Uses do not require extension or provision of urban level services. In many cases 
public roads or infrastructure are not available to serve the area, and may not be available in the 20 
year planning period. 

Goal RE 5: Support RCW 17.10 purpose to limit economic loss and adverse effects to Washington’s 

agriculture, natural, and human resources due to the presence and spread of noxious weeds on all 

terrestrial and aquatic areas in the State. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 8 of 17  

4. Existing Land Uses. Dispersed single family residences, farms or forest management activities, and 
other low intensity rural development may be present. Predominant parcel sizes are 20 acres or 
greater. 

 

B. RR10, RURAL RESIDENTIAL/RESOURCE: 1 DWELLING UNIT PER 10 ACRES 

Purpose: To allow for rural development, forestry and agricultural uses consistent with the rural 
character and rural development provisions outlined in the goals and policies of the comprehensive 
plan. These areas can function as areas of transition between resource lands and areas of more intense 
rural or urban development. These areas also provide opportunities for protecting sensitive 
environmental areas and creating open space typical of a rural setting. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: open space; residential; agriculture; and forestry. Additional 
uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance 
standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: natural resource support facilities and services; mineral 
resource activities; intensification of existing development or new development of small scale 
recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or setting but that do not include a new 
residential component; intensification of development on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential 
uses or new development of isolated cottage industries and isolated small-scale businesses that are not 
principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and nonresidential uses, but do 
provide for job opportunities for rural residents; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community 
facilities. 

Density: One (1) dwelling unit per ten (10) acres.  Clustering consistent with the underlying densities 
and the rural character and rural development provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive 
plan may be permitted. Topography, critical areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance 
with all other applicable development standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for 
clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics. The area is predominantly rural in character. Soil 
characteristics, steep slopes or other physical constraints to development may be present. 
Significant areas of undeveloped open space may exist. 

2. Natural Resources. The area may have agricultural or forest land practices of both small scale 
and/or commercial significance. The area may also be adjacent to designated resource lands. 

3. Public Services. Uses do not require the extension or provision of urban level services. These areas 
are rural in character and may have access or limited access to rural governmental services and 
infrastructure. These areas may have the potential to be provided with rural governmental services 
within the 20 year planning period. 

4. Existing Land Uses. Dispersed single family residences, farms or forest management activities and 
other rural development may be present. Predominant parcel sizes are 10 acres or larger. 

 

C. RR5, RURAL RESIDENTIAL/RESOURCE: 1 DWELLING UNIT PER 5 ACRES 

Purpose: Provides opportunities for small scale agricultural activities, and rural development consistent 
with the rural character and rural development provisions outlined in goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. These areas may provide opportunities for protecting sensitive environmental 
areas and open space typical of a rural setting. RR5 designations adjacent to urban growth areas are 
intended to encourage the preservation of rural areas until such time as they serve as urban growth 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 9 of 17  

areas and urban services become available. RR5 designations can also act as buffers between 
designated resource lands and more intense rural or urban development. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: open space; residential; agriculture; and forestry. Additional 
uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance 
standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: natural resource support facilities and services; mineral 
resource activities; intensification of existing development or new development of small scale 
recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or setting but that do not include a new 
residential component; intensification of development on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential 
uses or new development of isolated cottage industries and isolated small-scale businesses that are not 
principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and nonresidential uses, but do 
provide job opportunities for rural residents; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community 
facilities. 

Density: One (1) dwelling unit per five (5) acres. Clustering consistent with the underlying densities and 
the rural character and rural development provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive 
plan may be permitted. Topography, critical areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance 
with all other applicable development standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for 
clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics. The area is predominantly rural in character. Soil 
characteristics or other physical constraints to development may also be present. Some areas of 
undeveloped, open space may exist. The area may also be adjacent to designated urban growth 
areas. 

2. Natural Resources. The area may have agricultural or forest land practices of both small scale 
and/or commercial significance. The area may also be adjacent to designated resource lands. 

3. Public Services. Uses do not require extension or provision of urban level services. Rural 
governmental services are available or may be provided for within the 20 year planning period. 

4. Existing Land Uses. Dispersed single family residences, farms or forestry uses, cottage industries and 
small businesses, and other rural development may be present. Predominant parcel sizes are 5 
acres or larger. 

 

D. RR2.5, RURAL RESIDENTIAL: 1 DWELLING UNIT PER 2.5 ACRES 

Purpose: To maintain the range of rural development opportunities consistent with the rural character 
and rural development provisions outlined in the goals and policies of this comprehensive plan. These 
areas can provide buffering or transitions between existing rural developments and areas of higher or 
lower densities. This designation should not function as an urban reserve area, although these areas 
may someday be incorporated into an urban growth area. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: residential; agriculture; and forestry. Additional uses may be 
considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance standards, 
impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive 
plan. Such uses may include: intensification of existing development or new development of small scale 
recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or setting but that do not include a new 
residential component; intensification of development on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential 
uses or new development of isolated cottage industries and isolated small-scale businesses that are not 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 10 of 17  

principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and nonresidential uses, but do 
provide job opportunities for rural residents; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community 
facilities. 

Density: One (1) dwelling unit per 2.5 acres. Clustering consistent with the underlying densities and the 
rural character and rural development provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan 
may be permitted. Topography, critical areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance with all 
other applicable development standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics The area may have moderate soil limitations and may 
have other limited physical constraints to development. The area may be immediately adjacent to 
existing residential or rural developments. The area may be adjacent to urban growth areas. 

2. Natural Resources. The area has limited resource management potential. The area may be adjacent 
to resource lands. 

3. Public Services. Uses do not require extension or provision of urban levels of services. Rural 
governmental services and infrastructure are typically available, planned and or funded for. 

4. Existing Land Uses. Single family residences, agricultural uses, cottage industries and small 
businesses, and other rural development may be present. Predominant parcel sizes are currently 
2.5 acres or greater in size but typically less than 5 acres. 

 

E. RURAL PUBLIC LANDS AND FACILITIES (RP): 

Purpose: To provide open space, recreational opportunities, sites for necessary public facilities, utilities 
and services, and protection of critical areas. Encourage joint public/private ventures, where consistent 
with the rural development and rural character provisions, and goals and policies of this comprehensive 
plan. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: public facilities and services, open space and developed open 
space; agriculture; and forestry. Additional uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. 
These provisions shall address performance standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be 
consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: natural 
resource support facilities and services; mineral resource activities; intensification of existing or new 
development of small scale recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location or setting but that do 
not include new residential development; and intensification of development on lots containing isolated 
nonresidential uses or new development of isolated cottage industries and isolated small-scale 
businesses that are not principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and 
nonresidential uses. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics: These lands are in public ownership and may contain 
critical areas. The County has no jurisdiction over federal lands. 

2. Natural Resources: Public lands may contain resource lands. 

Public Services: Services should be limited to the needs of the public agencies. Extension of public 
services can be considered for joint public/private ventures if consistent with the provisions of the 
comprehensive plan. Development in these areas shall not create a need for urban governmental 
services. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 11 of 17  

V. Limited Areas of More Intensive Rural Development (LAMIRD) 

Introduction 

Generally, the rural element is to provide for a variety of rural densities, uses and facilities and services, 
and to recognize that a variety of developments already exist in rural areas. This includes some 
development that is more compact than the surrounding rural lands, which are considered to be Limited 
Areas of More Intensive Rural Developments (LAMIRD). There are three distinct types of LAMIRDs that 
may be designated pursuant to RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d). Type 1 can either be commercial, industrial, 
residential, or mixed-use. Type 2 delineates existing commercial tourist or recreational commercial uses 
as well as allowing some new commercial tourist uses that rely on a rural location. The Type 3 LAMIRD 
identifies isolated small-scale businesses. Generally, limited areas of more intensive rural development 
include necessary public facilities and public services to serve that area. 

Intent 

LAMIRDs are designated to identify more intense areas of existing development, and to minimize and 
contain those existing developed areas within the rural lands. LAMIRDs are not intended by the 
Legislature to be mini-UGAs, suburbs or areas for significant future development. LAMIRDs are rural; 
they are contained and compact, and, with minor exceptions, were built before July 1, 1990. Though the 
LAMIRD will recognize existing development, it cannot promote sprawl or low-density growth in the 
rural area. In designating LAMIRDs, the County has established clear criteria to address each type of 
LAMIRD. Those criteria generally address the need to contain and control existing development, and the 
need to preserve the character of the community, its physical boundaries and prevent abnormally 
irregular boundaries. The criteria will also determine how public facilities and services will be provided in 
a manner that does not permit low density sprawl. 

General LAMIRD Criteria 

Lands designated as LAMIRDs will not extend beyond the logical outer boundary of the existing area or 
use. Existing areas are those that are clearly identifiable and contained and where there is a logical 
boundary delineated predominately by the built environment, but may also include limited undeveloped 
lands within the LAMIRD. Generally, future development may occur as infill or redevelopment, although 
new development can occur in some LAMIRD types. In establishing the logical outer boundary, the 
County will address (A) the need to preserve the character of existing natural neighborhoods and 
communities, (B) physical boundaries such as bodies of water, streets and highways, and land forms and 
contours, (C) the prevention of abnormally irregular boundaries, and (D) the ability to provide public 
facilities and public services in a manner that does not permit low-density sprawl. Upon the initiation or 
update of a community and/or sub-area plan in the rural areas of the County, future LAMIRDs will be 
evaluated and existing LAMIRD designations will be updated as necessary to be consistent with the 
Growth Management Act provisions in RCW 36.70A.070(5) for Limited Areas of More Intensive Rural 
Development (LAMIRDs). 

 

Type 1 LAMIRD- commercial, industrial, residential, or mixed-use. 

Type 1 LAMIRDs are described as rural development consisting of existing and potential infill of 
commercial, industrial, residential, or mixed use, whether characterized as shoreline developments, 
villages, hamlets, rural activity centers, or crossroads developments. These LAMIRDs must meet the 
general criteria listed above, and must be principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural 
population (with the exception of industrial LAMIRDs and/or industrial uses within a mixed use LAMIRD, 
which are not required to meet this standard). It is also important that these designations are 
consistent with the character of the existing uses, particularly in terms of building size, scale, use or 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 12 of 17  

intensity. Changes in use from vacant land or some previous use may be allowed, provided the new use 
complies with these above requirements. 

 

Type 2 LAMIRD- existing commercial tourist or recreational commercial uses as well as some 
new commercial tourist uses in a rural location. 

Type 2 LAMIRDs are an intensification of development on lots containing, or new development of, small- 
scale recreational or tourist uses, including commercial facilities to serve those recreational or tourist 
uses that rely on a rural location and setting. This type of LAMIRD designation is not required to only 
serve the existing and projected rural population, but it also may not include new residential 
development. Public services and public facilities are limited to those necessary to serve the recreation 
or tourist use and will be provided in a manner that does not permit low-density sprawl. 

 

Type 3 LAMIRD- isolated non-residential, cottage industries and small-scale businesses. 

Type 3 LAMIRDs are the intensification of development on lots containing isolated nonresidential uses 
or new development of isolated cottage industries and isolated small-scale businesses. This type of 
LAMIRD is not principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population and 
nonresidential uses, but does provide job opportunities for rural residents. The County may allow the 
expansion of small-scale businesses as long as those small-scale businesses conform with the rural 
character of the area as defined by the County through a process consistent with RCW 36.70A.030(14). 
The County may also allow new small-scale businesses to utilize a site previously occupied by an existing 
business as long as the new small-scale business conforms to the rural character of the area as defined 
by the County. Public services and public facilities are limited to those necessary to serve the isolated 
nonresidential use and will be provided in a manner that does not permit low-density sprawl. 

 

 
VI. Goals and Policies – LAMIRDs 

Where applicable, existing policies identified within the Comprehensive Plan which are consistent with 
LAMIRD designations should be considered when addressing LAMIRD development. 

 

Policy RE 6.1: Development in LAMIRDs, except for industrial areas or industrial sites within mixed- 
use areas, should be principally designed to serve the existing and projected rural population. 

Rationale:  Requirements of the Growth Management Act allowing more intense development 
in rural areas include a provision that these areas serve primarily the existing and projected rural 
population, generally to ensure rural sprawl does not occur where inappropriate. 

Policy RE 6.2: Apply development standards in LAMIRDs to ensure the design of development or 
redevelopment is consistent with the character of the existing areas and the proposed use conforms 
to the intent of this Comprehensive Plan. 

Rationale: Requiring new and/or redevelopment within LAMIRD designations to be consistent 
with the provisions of this element ensure that the County remains consistent with the 
requirements of the Growth Management Act with respect to LAMIRD designations. 

GOAL RE 6: Designate limited areas of more intensive rural development (LAMIRDs) for infill, 

development or redevelopment of existing commercial, industrial, residential or mixed use areas. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 13 of 17  

VII. Designations/Siting Criteria – LAMIRDs: 

The following designations apply to the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan through the zoning 
map. Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation for the Rural areas are identified and discussed in the 
Land Use Element. The following purpose and locational guidelines provide a basic understanding of the 
zoning districts intent and how they relate to the Comprehensive Plan designations, see the Land Use 
Element. 

 

A. RURAL WATERFRONT (RW): 

This designation is considered an implementation of a Type 1 LAMIRD as described above, consistent 
with the Growth Management Act. 

Purpose: This designation will provide the opportunity for the development, redevelopment and infill of 
existing intensely developed shoreline areas for residential, and water related/water dependent 
recreational and tourist development consistent with the rural character and rural development 
provisions outlined in the goals and policies of this comprehensive plan. These areas provide a distinct 
water related lifestyle. Potential impacts to the surrounding area, critical areas, and water quality shall 
be addressed. These areas must be clearly identifiable as existing intensely developed rural shorelines; 
where a logical boundary can be delineated and set by the built environment. Such a boundary shall not 
permit or encourage a new pattern of sprawling low density or urban type development. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: open space and developed open space; residential; 
agriculture; and forestry. Additional uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These 
provisions shall address performance standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with 
the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan.  Such uses may include:  intensification of existing 
development or new development infill, development, or redevelopment of existing areas of small scale 
water related/water dependent recreational or tourist uses, including commercial facilities to serve 
those recreational or tourist uses, that rely on a rural location or setting but that do not include a new 
residential component; intensification of development on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential 
uses; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community facilities. 

Density: May allow for less than 1 acre per dwelling unit, when consistent with the Health District 
standards. The provision of necessary public facilities and services shall not permit or encourage low 
density sprawl or urban type development outside of the designation boundary. Existing urban 
governmental services in some areas, may allow for higher densities than those with rural governmental 
services. 

Clustering consistent with the underlying densities and the rural character and rural development 
provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan may be permitted. Topography, critical 
areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance with all other applicable development 
standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics: Parcels are located on or near shorelines identified by 
the Chelan County Shoreline Master Program. The area may have moderate soil limitations and may 
have other limited physical constraints to development. 

2. Natural Resources: This designation shall not be applied on resource lands of long term commercial 
significance. 

3. Public Services: Necessary public facilities and public services to serve the development, 
redevelopment or infill of these areas may be provided. There may be some existing urban 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 14 of 17  

governmental services. Rural governmental services are typically available, planned and or funded 
for. 

4. Existing land uses: Seasonal and year-round residences, tourist and recreational activities and other 
rural development may be present. Predominant parcel sizes are 1 acre or smaller. 

 

B. RURAL RECREATIONAL/RESIDENTIAL (RRR) 

This designation is considered an implementation of a Type 1 LAMIRD as described above, consistent 
with the Growth Management Act. 

Purpose: This designation will provide the opportunity for the development, redevelopment and infill of 
existing intensely developed rural recreational/residential areas for residential, recreational and tourist 
development consistent with the rural character and rural development provisions outlined in the goals 
and policies of this comprehensive plan. These areas provide a distinct rural lifestyle closely associated 
with the many natural amenities found within Chelan County. Potential impacts to the surrounding 
area, critical areas, and water quality shall be addressed. These areas must be clearly identifiable as 
existing intensely developed rural recreational development; where a logical boundary can be 
delineated and set by the built environment. Such a boundary shall not permit or encourage a new 
pattern of sprawling low density or urban type development. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: open space and developed open space; residential; 
agriculture; and forestry. Additional uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These 
provisions shall address performance standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent 
with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: intensification of 
existing development or new development infill, development, or redevelopment of existing areas of 
small scale recreational or tourist uses, including commercial facilities to serve those recreational or 
tourist uses, that rely on a rural location or setting but that do not include a new residential 
component; intensification of development on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential uses; 
home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community facilities. 

Density: May allow for less than 1 acre per dwelling unit, when consistent with Health District 
standards. The provision of necessary public facilities and services shall not permit or encourage low- 
density sprawl or urban type development outside of the designation boundary. 

Clustering consistent with the underlying densities and the rural character and rural development 
provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan may be permitted. Topography, critical 
areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance with all other applicable development 
standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics: Developments are closely associated with natural 
amenities found within Chelan County. The area may have moderate soil limitations and may have 
other limited physical constraints to development. 

2. Natural Resources: This designation shall not be applied on resource lands of long term commercial 
significance. 

3. Public Services: Necessary public facilities and public services to serve the development, 
redevelopment or infill of these areas may be provided. Rural governmental services are typically 
available, planned and/or funded for. 

4. Existing land uses: Seasonal and year-round residences, tourist and recreational activities and other 
rural development may be present. Predominant parcel sizes are 1 acre or smaller. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 15 of 17  

C. RURAL VILLAGE (RV): 

This designation is considered an implementation of a Type 1 LAMIRD as described above, consistent 
with the Growth Management Act. 

Purpose: This designation recognizes the existence of intensely developed rural residential 
developments and communities, with densities less than 2.5 acres per dwelling unit, which typically will 
not have sewer service. This designation will provide the opportunity for the development, 
redevelopment and infill of existing intensely developed rural residential areas for residential and other 
rural development consistent with the rural character and rural development provisions outlined in the 
goals and policies of this comprehensive plan. Potential impacts to the surrounding area, critical areas, 
and water quality shall be addressed. These areas must be clearly identifiable as existing intensely 
developed rural residential development; where a logical boundary can be delineated and set by the 
built environment. Such a boundary shall not permit or encourage a new pattern of sprawling low 
density or urban type development. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: developed open space; residential; agriculture; and forestry. 
Additional uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address 
performance standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies 
of the comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: intensification of infill, development, or 
redevelopment of existing areas of small scale recreational or tourist uses that rely on a rural location 
or setting but that do not include a new residential component; intensification of development on lots 
containing existing isolated nonresidential uses; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and 
community facilities. 

Density: May allow for less than 2.5 acres per dwelling unit. The establishment of densities shall 
consider pre-existing development patterns, Health District standards, proximity to resource lands, 
existence of critical areas and the availability of necessary public facilities and services. The provision of 
necessary public facilities and services shall not permit or encourage low density sprawl or urban type 
development outside of the designation boundary. 

Clustering consistent with the underlying densities and the rural character and rural development 
provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan may be permitted. Topography, critical 
areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance with all other applicable development 
standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics: The area may have moderate soil limitations and may 
have other limited physical constraints to development. The area may be adjacent to a variety of 
rural development, and areas with varying residential densities. The area may be adjacent to urban 
growth areas. 

2. Natural Resources. The area has low resource management potential. The area may be adjacent to 
resource lands. 

3. Public Services: Sewer service is typically not available. Rural governmental services and 
infrastructure are typically available, planned and/or funded for. Necessary public facilities and 
public services to serve the development, redevelopment, or infill of these areas may be provided. 

4. Existing Land Uses. Single family residences and other rural development may be present. 
Predominant parcel sizes are less than 2.5 acres. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 16 of 17  

E. RURAL COMMERCIAL (RC): 

This designation is considered an implementation of a Type 1 LAMIRD as described above, consistent 
with the Growth Management Act where it is applied to existing mixed use areas. Additionally, this 
designation is considered an implementation of Type 2 and Type 3 LAMIRDs as described above, 
consistent with the Growth Management Act where the existing uses consist of only commercial 
activities, whether general retail or tourist recreational in nature. 

Purpose:  To provide for a range of commercial uses to meet the needs of local residents, and small 
scale tourist or recreational uses including commercial facilities to serve those recreational or tourist 
uses within the rural areas to meet the needs of local residents and visitors. This designation will provide 
the opportunity for the development, redevelopment and infill of commercial uses in existing rural 
commercial developments, mixed use areas or intensely developed residential areas consistent with the 
rural character and rural development provisions outlined in the goals and policies of this 
comprehensive plan. Potential impacts to the surrounding area, critical areas, and water quality shall be 
addressed. These areas must be clearly identifiable as existing rural commercial developments, mixed 
use areas or intensely developed residential developments; where a logical boundary can be delineated 
and set by the built environment. Such a boundary shall not permit or encourage new rural commercial 
development outside of these boundaries. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: commercial facilities and services; developed open space; 
above ground floor residential housing; agriculture; forestry; natural resource support facilities and 
services, tourist or recreational uses; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community facilities. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics: The area may have moderate soil limitations and may 
have other limited physical constraints to development. The area may be adjacent to a variety of 
rural development. 

2. Natural Resources. These areas have low resource management potential. The area may be 
adjacent to resource lands. 

3. Public Services: Rural governmental services and infrastructure are typically available, planned 
and/or funded for. Necessary public facilities and public services to serve the development, 
redevelopment or infill of these areas may be provided. 

4. Existing Land Uses. Commercial, or higher intensity residential uses may be present, in addition to 
other rural development. 

 

F. RURAL INDUSTRIAL (RI): 

This designation is considered an implementation of a Type 1 LAMIRD as described above, consistent 
with the Growth Management Act. 

Purpose: To recognize the need for rural industrial and resource based industrial activities within the 
rural areas. This designation will provide the opportunity for the development, redevelopment and infill 
of existing rural industrial developments or former industrial sites consistent with the rural character 
and rural development provisions outlined in the goals and policies of this comprehensive plan. 
Potential impacts to the surrounding area, critical areas, and water quality shall be addressed. These 
areas must be clearly identifiable as existing rural industrial developments or former industrial sites; 
where a logical boundary can be delineated and set by the built environment. Such a boundary shall not 
permit or encourage new industrial development outside of these boundaries. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 
December 202017 

Rural Element Page 17 of 17  

Uses appropriate for these areas include: industrial facilities and services; intensification of 
development on lots containing isolated nonresidential uses; agriculture; forestry; caretaker residence 
for industrial facilities; and natural resource support facilities and services. Additional uses may be 
considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance standards, 
impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive 
plan. Such uses may include: mineral resource activities. 

New industrial sites may be designated during yearly comprehensive plan amendments if consistent 
with criteria and requirements outlined in RCW 36.70A.365 and the goals and policies of this 
comprehensive plan. Such a new industrial area would be designated as an urban growth area and have 
the potential to receive urban services. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographical and Geological Characteristics: The area may have moderate soil limitations and may 
have other limited physical constraints to development. The area may be adjacent to a variety of 
rural development. 

2. Natural Resources. Existing rural industrial sites have low resource management potential. The area 
may be adjacent to resource lands. Future industrial sites may be located in areas with agricultural 
or forestry uses if consistent with the criteria outlined in RCW36.70A.365. 

3. Public Services: Rural governmental services and infrastructure are typically available, planned 
and/or funded for. Necessary public facilities and public services to serve the development, 
redevelopment, or infill of these areas may be provided. Some industrial sites may currently have 
sewer service. Industrial sites designated pursuant to RCW 36.70A.365, as urban growth areas, 
would have access to urban services. 

4. Existing Land Uses. Industrial developments currently exist or the area may have been utilized in the 
past for an industrial use. Areas identified as having potential for infill for industrial uses may be 
currently utilized for a variety of rural development and resource activities. Future industrial sites 
designated pursuant to RCW 36.70A.365, may presently have a variety of rural development and 
resource activities. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 1 of 18  

 

Chapter 4 Resource Element  
 
 

I. Introduction 

This Resource Element provides a concise overview of the Agricultural, Forest and Mineral Resources 
and critical areas within Chelan County consistent with the Goals of the Growth Management Act, in 
accordance RCW 36.70A, WAC 365 and with the County-Wide Planning Policies. Furthermore, it has 
been integrated with all other planning elements to ensure consistency throughout the comprehensive 
plan. 

The goals and policies contained in the Resource Element form the basis of the land use strategy to 
support long-term resources: 

o Providing for a supply and distribution of land use types to 
accommodate the population and employment growth 
projected for the planning area; 

o Reducing development pressures and patterns of sprawl within 
rural areas; 

o Conserving agricultural, forest and mineral resource lands of 
long-term commercial significance; and 

o Preserving and protecting critical areas and areas of 
rural character. 

 

II. Overview of Chelan County 

Chelan County is divided by mountains and rolling hills which form 
several valley and basins areas where agricultural and mineral resources 
compete with growing rural and urban land uses. It is not uncommon for 
development and resource lands to be intermixed or in close proximity 
to each other. 

This Element summarizes the current resource lands, provides guidance 
for locating and protecting resources and specific goals and policies for 
managing these resources to “assure that the use of lands adjacent to 
agricultural, forest, or mineral resource lands shall not interfere with the 
continued use of these designated lands for the production of food, 

agricultural products, or timber, or for the extraction of minerals.”1 

Overall, two key issues, land ownership and access, currently restrict the 
County for accessing the vast potential for resources. First, as discussed 
in the Land Use Element, most of Chelan County is in federal or state 
ownership. Ownership has less of an impact on Forest/Timber resource management than on 
Agriculture and Mineral Resources. 

 
 

 
1 RCW 36.70A.060 

 
The State legislature 

found that it is in the 

public interest to identify 

and provide long-term 

conservation of those 

productive natural 

resource lands that are 

critical to and can be 

managed economically 

and practically for long- 

term commercial 

production of food, fiber, 

and minerals. Successful 

achievement of the 

natural resource 

industries' goal set forth 

in RCW 36.70A.020 

requires the 

conservation of a land 

base sufficient in size 

and quality to maintain 

and enhance those 

industries and the 

development and use of 

land use techniques that 

discourage uses 

incompatible to the 

management of 

designated lands. 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/Rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&amp;amp%3Bfull=true&amp;amp%3B36.70A.020


Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 2 of 18  

Secondly, as discussed in the Transportation Element, the road network provides major trucking routes 
which support related resources industries. Hauling routes are limited, in part, due to topography. For 
the three types of resources reviewed in this Element, mineral, agriculture and forestry, the current 
primary economic exports are agriculture and forestry products. 

 

III. Chelan County Agricultural Lands 

Chelan County contains agricultural lands that are important to the economy of the area. It must be 
recognized that in order to continue to exist, orchards must remain profitable. In an attempt to 
encourage existing and future agricultural development as a viable land use and a significant economic 
activity within the County, agricultural lands of long term commercial significance have been designated 
according to the U.S. Soil Conservation Service's classification for prime and unique farmland soils, and 
criteria outlined in WAC 365-190-050. These areas have been identified on the land use map designated 
as Commercial Agricultural Lands (AC). The Growth Management Act defines "long term commercial 
significance" to include the growing capacity, productivity, and soil composition of the land for long- 
term commercial production, in consideration with the land's proximity to population areas, and the 
possibility of more intense uses of the land. 

Typically the most successful agricultural land conservation programs in the United States have been 
ones that combine incentive and regulatory techniques chosen according to the needs and conditions of 
a community. The opportunity for differential tax assessment for orchardists in Chelan County, helps to 
provide landowners an incentive to remain in an agricultural use. Buffers, parcel size, and a clustering 
development option provide regulatory techniques to retain agricultural land. This combination of 
conservation techniques provides property owners the flexibility for some non-farm development, helps 
reduce conflict between non-farm development and agricultural operations, and preserves farmable 
orchard parcels in support of retaining a viable orchard industry. 

Chelan County participates in the Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP) program. The VSP is an optional, 
incentive-based approach to protecting critical areas while promoting agriculture. The VSP is allowed 
under the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A.700-760) as an alternative to traditional approaches 
to critical areas protection, such as “no touch” buffers. Chelan County is one of 28 counties that has 
“opted in” to VSP. 

 

Land Use Designation/Siting Criteria: Commercial Agricultural Lands 

Purpose:  To assure the long-term conservation of commercial agricultural lands; to protect and 
preserve the farmers ability to farm; encourage existing and future agricultural land uses as a viable land 
use and a significant economic activity within the community; and, to protect agricultural land of long 
term commercial significance not already characterized by urban development from encroachment and 
incompatible uses. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: agriculture; open space; residential; and forestry. Additional 
uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance 
standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: natural resource support facilities and services; mineral 
resource activities; intensification of existing small scale recreational or tourist uses that rely upon a 
rural setting but that do not include a new residential component; intensification of development on 
lots containing existing isolated nonresidential uses; home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and 
community facilities. 

Density: One (1) dwelling unit per 10 acres. Clustering consistent with the underlying densities and the 
rural character and rural development provisions of the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 3 of 18  

may be permitted. Topography, critical areas, other environmental constraints, and compliance with all 
other applicable development standards shall be considered in the provisions to allow for clustering. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographic and Geological Characteristics: The area contains farmland soils classified as prime 
or unique by the Natural Resource Conservation Service. Soil characteristics, moderate slopes 
or other physical constraints to development may be present. The area should not be adjacent 
to intensive urban or incompatible rural development. The predominant land use in the area is 
agriculture. 

2. Natural Resources: The area should contain or have the potential to contain agricultural or 
agriculture support activities. The area should meet the criteria under WAC 365-190-050, as 
agricultural lands of long term commercial significance. 

3. Public Services: Uses should not require extension or provision of urban level services. These 
areas may have access to rural governmental services and infrastructure or have the potential to 
be provided with rural governmental services within the 20 year planning period.  Urban 
services should not be present. 

4. Existing Land Uses: The prevailing land use pattern consists of agricultural operations and 
agricultural support facilities and services. Dispersed single family residences and low intensity 
rural uses may be present. The predominant parcel size is typically 5 acres or larger. 

 

Agricultural Resource Lands: Goals & Policies 

While developing goals and policies and designating agricultural resource lands, many issues and 
concerns were identified during the public participation process and addressed during the development 
of the goals and policies for the agricultural section of the Land Use Element including: Agriculture vs. 
residential development 

o Who is responsible for mitigation measures (developer of incompatible use) 
o Where should development occur 
o Recognize as a significant economic activity 
o Agricultural uses vs. compatible and incompatible uses 
o Availability of irrigation water 
o Protecting farmers options 
o Periodic re-examination of the Commercial Agriculture designations 

Areas not designated as agricultural resource lands of long term commercial significance that do not 
meet the designation criteria can still play an important part in the local agricultural industry. Rural 
designations and buffers between orchards and non-farm development may be beneficial in retaining 
much of the rural area’s current orchards. Future expansion of long term agriculture into rural 
undeveloped areas is a possibility, but will heavily depend upon the availability of water, water rights, 
and market conditions. 

GOAL AL 1: Support the viability of agriculture and encourage the continued use of rural and 
resource lands for agriculturally related land uses. 

Goal Rationale: The County benefits from a commercially significant and viable agricultural 
industry. 

Policy AL 1.1: Encourage air quality standards and policies that accommodate necessary agricultural 
practices. 

Rationale: Burning is essential to orchard renewal. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 4 of 18  

Policy AL 1.2: The farmer shall have the right to farm, consistent with appropriate local, state and 
federal requirements. 

Rationale: Agriculture plays a significant role in the welfare of the County and its residents, and 
should be supported. 

Policy AL 1.3: Encourage the maintenance of agricultural lands in current use property tax classification 
consistent with RCW 84.34, the Open Space Taxation Act. 

Rationale: Open space taxation allows property owners to be assessed at current use rather 
than highest and best use. This provides an incentive for the property owner to continue to use 
land for resource production. 

Policy AL 1.4: Conserve agricultural lands for productive economic use by identifying and designating 
agricultural resource lands whose principal and preferred land use is commercial agricultural resource 
management. 

Rationale: Activities in designated agricultural resource lands should be discouraged that would 
limit or eliminate the ability to continue agricultural operations. 

Policy AL 1.5: Agricultural resource lands should be classified and designated based on the criteria and 
procedures established in WAC 365-190-040, and 050, with special consideration given to long-term 
viability commercially significant agricultural land. 

Rationale: Agricultural Resource lands should be identified based on the best available 
information at the time of the designation. 

Policy AL 1.6: Support public and private programs and efforts to ensure the viability of the agricultural 
industry. 

Rationale: Strong agricultural markets and a supportive regulatory environment are two of the 
necessary components of a healthy agricultural industry. Attempts to secure these will be 
beneficial to the general welfare of the County. 

Policy AL 1.7: In rural and resource lands, permit facilities and services that support Chelan County’s 
natural resource industries, provided such facilities are compatible with surrounding uses and potential 
impacts can be mitigated. 

Rationale: The agricultural industry in Chelan County is a significant economic activity. 
Necessary support services and facilities should be accommodated. 

Policy AL 1.8: Protect the economic viability of the agricultural industry by supporting construction of 
agricultural worker housing near orchard areas. Where permitted by state agencies, consider the 
reduction of site development and fire protection standards for temporary housing units for migrant 
workers. 

Rationale: This will assist the agricultural industry to remain economically viable, reduces 
transportation needs, and provides adequate housing for agricultural workers. 

Policy AL 1.9: Develop regulations promoting agriculture-related accessory uses on existing farms to 
supplement farm income, improve farming efficiency, and provide employment for farm family 
members. 

Rationale: Regulatory opportunities for limited enterprises such as direct marketing of 
unprocessed and value added agricultural products and agriculturally related small scale tourist 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 5 of 18  

operations can help supplement the agricultural industry and maintain the primary use of 
agriculture. 

Goal AL 2: Conserve agricultural lands of long-term significance by controlling encroachment 
of incompatible uses. 

Goal Rationale: Limiting the encroachment of incompatible uses will help to insure that 
agricultural lands remain viable. 

Policy AL 2.1: All plats, short plats, binding site plans, development permits and building permits issued 
for development activities on or within five hundred feet of lands designated as agricultural resource 
lands, shall contain a notice that the subject property is within or near designated agricultural resource 
lands. The notice shall further state that a variety of commercial activities may occur on these 
designated lands that are not compatible with the development. 

Rationale: Such notification will help property owners and purchasers to make educated 
decisions. 

Policy AL 2.2: Encourage clustering of residential development on lands adjacent to agricultural 
resource lands provide open space buffers between uses and address incompatibility issues. 

Rationale: Clustering can provide for open space adjacent to the resource use and may help to 
minimize conflicts. 

Policy AL 2.3: Require new non-farm development in rural areas, adjacent to an existing orchard 
operation, to provide appropriate buffers and/or mitigation measures to minimize potential conflicts. 

Rationale: Orchard operations in rural lands account for a significant amount of the agriculture 
within Chelan County. It is important to protect the farmer's ability to continue to farm by 
minimizing potential conflicts. 

Policy AL 2.4: Development on or adjacent to designated agricultural resource lands, including plats, 
short plats, and binding site plans, should avoid and minimize potential conflicts with agricultural 
operations through appropriate siting and mitigation measures, such as buffers, screening, dust control, 
and pest control. 

Rationale: Buffers can reduce the potential for conflicts between agricultural operations and 
other land uses. 

Policy AL 2.5: Designated agricultural resource lands should be protected from inappropriate 
infrastructure improvement assessments. Deferral programs or other measures should be considered 
that would protect the farmer's ability to continue farming. 

Rationale: Additional taxes would impact the viability of agricultural operations. Infrastructure 
improvements or assessments inconsistent with the comprehensive plan should not be 
supported. 

 

IV. Chelan County Mineral Lands2 

Chelan County has a Mineral Resource Lands Overlay (MRLO) which identifies and protects lands that 
have the potential to contain mineral resource deposits of long-term commercial significance, to 
recognize the importance of preserving mineral lands to ensure the future supply and to ensure 
compatibility between mineral resource lands and surrounding land uses. 

 

2 Mineral Resource data contained within this Element reflects work completed by BERK Consulting, Inc with grant 
funds from the Department of Commerce, July 26, 2017. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 6 of 18 
 

Mineral resources in Chelan County are classified into two tiers of commercial importance. This MRLO 
focuses on Primary resources: 

Primary: Sand, gravel, and rock/stone (either solid or crushed for use in aggregate). The Mineral 
Resource Lands Overlay (MRLO) is generally applied to areas of existing production and those 
rural lands with high potential for production. It should be noted that large areas of potential 
mineral production are under federal ownership and therefore not considered available or 
mapped but may be designated if the site meets the MRLO criteria. 

Secondary: All other metallic, non-metallic, and petroleum mineral resources occurring in 
Chelan County. Historically, mining was a major component of the regional economy, including 
extraction of copper, zinc, silver and gold. The MRLO is not generally applied to areas where 
these resources occur, but property owners may apply for designation if the site meets the 
MRLO criteria. 

 

Surface Mineral Extraction Sites 

In 2017, the Washington State Department of Natural Resources (DNR) records documented eleven 
active surface mining sites in Chelan County. Three of these mines are rock/stone quarries, and the 
remaining eight are sand and gravel extraction sites. Morrill Asphalt and Paving, the recorded owner of 
two pits in Wenatchee, appears to be out of business, reducing the number of active permitted surface 
mining sites in the County to nine. 

In addition to DNR-permitted surface mines, mineral extraction also occurs in Chelan County at smaller 
scales. Mines with surface disturbance of less than three acres or a depth of less than 30 feet may 
operate without a DNR surface mining permit, and DNR does not track these operations. The Chelan 
County Assessor documents an additional 12 locations with a current land use classification of “Mining 
Activities.” Of these, one is owned by a land conservation organization, four are owned by the federal 
government and one appears to be a single-family residence. 

Mining operations occur near agriculture, forestry, manufacturing/industrial, single-family residential, 
government service, and undeveloped land, by the County Assessor. Of the eleven active mines in the 
County, five3 are adjacent to or located on land classified as single-family residential. This is consistent 
with Exhibit 1 which identifies high-potential mineral sources lands within the Rural 
Residential/Resource zoning district, covering nearly 57,000 acres. Current and potential impacts to 
residential development may occur and should be reflected in mitigation measures. 

 

Current Mining Operations 

A review of DNR permits, in 2017, indicated that five of the 11 permits estimated a total lifetime deposit 
sizes between 1 million and 1.5 million cubic yards of material. Tunnel Hill Granite estimated their 
lifetime extraction volume at 3 million cubic yards, and R&P Rock estimated theirs at 6 million cubic 
yards. Three producers, Wenatchee Rock Products, Morrill Asphalt, and Chelan Concrete, had much 
smaller deposits at 660,000 cubic yards, 200,000 cubic yards, and 150,000 cubic yards, respectively. 
Public information on the acreage permitted for mining and permitted depth indicates that a volume of 
approximately 71,987 acre-feet (116,138,787 cubic yards) is permitted for mining in Chelan County; this 
is inclusive of overburden and any other waste material that must be excavated to access the mineral 
deposits themselves. 

 
 
 

3 Two Rivers Quarry, the R&P Rock Blewett Pass Quarry, the Pipkin Construction Entiat Mine, the Wenatchee Rock 
Products Rock Pit, and the Chelan Sand and Gravel Howard Flats Mine 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 7 of 18 
 

Demand 

Past sales4 indicate that during most of the previous decade, sales associated with mining varied 
between $300,000 and $600,000, but sales dipped slightly in 2009 before rising again, likely due to 
effects of the recent recession. The average annual sales between 2006-2015 were approximately 

$454,000.5 

Making detailed predictions about future mineral product demand from this data would be difficult, but 
the information available provides an estimate of baseline mineral product production value in Chelan 
County and reinforces the idea that the mineral products market is potentially subject to periodic spikes 
in demand. 

 

Mineral Resource Lands Overlay 

Based on review of available mineral resources data, information gained from local businesses and 
agencies, the requirements of the Growth Management Act, and designation frameworks employed by 
other jurisdictions, the Mineral Resource Lands Overlay (MRLO), shown on Exhibit 1, covers the 
following areas: 

• Properties housing active mining operations and adjacent parcels under unified ownership; 

• Lands classified by NRCS as “good” sources of sand, gravel, or road fill material; and 

• Lands classified by NRCS as “fair” sources of sand, gravel, or road fill material and which are 
located outside cities and urban growth areas. 

The following areas are excluded from the overlay: 

• Properties currently developed for single-family residential or commercial uses. 
Rationale: Mining on or near these lands poses a possibility of adverse impacts that must 
be mitigated. 

• Properties zoned for commercial or residential uses at urban intensities. 

• Land zoned for a minimum lot size smaller than 10 acres. 

• Developed properties less than 20 acres in size. 
Rationale: Large properties are better able to accommodate buffers from surrounding uses. 

• Properties under Federal ownership. 

• Lands designated as Natural by the Chelan County Shoreline Master Program. 
Rationale: The SMP prohibits mining activities in these areas for the protection of valuable 
shoreline natural resources. 

• Lands more than one mile from a designated WSDOT Freight and Goods Transportation route. 

Rationale: WAC 365-190 requires consideration of the availability of roads and public 
infrastructure, as well as the distance from mineral deposits to market. Mining operations 
have the potential to generate significant truck traffic, which will require roads designated 
to handle high volumes of freight trips. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 Taxable Retail Sales data from the Washington State Department of Revenue 
5 Washington Department of Revenue, 2017 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 8 of 18  

Exhibit 1. Draft Proposed Mineral Resource Lands Overlay 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 9 of 18  

Land Use Designation/Siting Criteria: Commercial Mineral Lands 

The following purpose and locational guidelines provide a basic understanding of the zoning districts 
intent and how they relate to the Comprehensive Plan designations. 

Designation Guidelines: 

1. Geographic and Geologic Characteristics: The designated property should be at least 20 acres in 
size, and the estimated deposit size should be sufficient to meet both of the following: 

a. Depth of overburden should be no more than 25 feet, and 

b. The ratio of the amount of resource to be extracted to the amount of overburden to be 
removed should be at least 3:1. 

2. Natural Resources: The designated property does not contain environmentally critical areas, 
including wetlands, riparian areas, threatened or endangered species, geological hazards, and 
critical aquifer recharge areas, or adequate mitigation can be provided. 

3. Transportation Infrastructure: Extraction and processing sites have adequate access to the 
regional transportation network: 

a. Mineral Resource Lands should be located within one mile of a designated WSDOT 
Freight and Goods Transportation System route; and 

b. Truck haul routes from the site should avoid areas of residential development or employ 
appropriate mitigation measures to avoid impacts to residences. 

4. Existing Land Uses: Adjacent land uses are generally compatible with mineral extraction and 
processing activities – examples include mining, agriculture, commercial forestry, industrial 
development, and undeveloped land. Designation of land adjacent to large-lot residential (no 
more than 1 dwelling per 5 acres) is conditional on mitigation of impacts from any future 
mineral extraction or processing activities on nearby residences. 

 

Mineral Resource Lands: Goals & Policies 

Goal ML 1: Protect Chelan County's mineral resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance and allow for short-term mineral resource extraction opportunities in 
unincorporated areas, where appropriate. 

Rationale: Conservation of these resources must be assured through measures designed to 
prevent incompatible development in or adjacent to designated mineral resource lands, and to 
mitigate impacts of mineral extraction activities on adjacent land uses. 

Policy ML 1.1: Assure conservation of designated mineral resource lands through land use regulations 
that prevent incompatible development on or adjacent to mineral resource lands. 

Rationale: Mineral resource extraction, such as sand and gravel, pits are typically incompatible 
with residential and other types of land uses due to noise, dust and heavy equipment traffic. 
Therefore, it is important to develop appropriate land use regulations that protect mineral 
resource lands as well as adjacent land uses. 

Policy ML 1.2: Require the reclamation of land after the completion of gravel and mineral extraction. 

Rationale: Effective reclamation of mining sites can insure future redevelopment of the site and 
prevent impacts from erosion and visual impacts. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 10 of 18  

Policy ML 1.3: Require mining and extraction operations to be sited and designed to avoid and mitigate 
conflicts with surrounding land uses. Screening, buffers, the provision of open space and other 
mitigation measures should be considered and required where necessary. 

Rationale: The careful design and siting of mining operations can prevent or minimize impacts 
to surrounding land uses. 

Policy ML 1.4: Require mining sites to be served by roadways, adequate to handle industrial traffic and 
not endanger public health and safety. 

Rationale: Transportation system impacts and public health and safety issues must be 
addressed. 

Policy ML 1.5: Encourage development locating adjacent to designated mineral resource lands to 
incorporate screening, buffers, open space, or other design features to prevent conflicts with existing or 
future mineral resource extraction activities. 

Rationale: The minimization of potential conflicts helps to maintain the viability of mineral 
resource extraction operations. 

Policy ML 1.6: Protect water quality and prevent sedimentation through use of settling ponds, retaining 
basins, ditches, diking and re-vegetation of slopes and other measures for mining and production 
operations. 

Rationale: Water resources must be protected. 

Policy ML 1.7: Surface mining should not lower the ground water table of surrounding properties in a 
manner that directly impacts their use. 

Rationale: Lowering of the ground water table could have serious effects on domestic water 
supplies. 

Policy ML 1.8: Clustering of residential development on adjacent non-resource lands is encouraged. 

Rationale: Clustering will provide for open space adjacent to the resource use and will minimize 
conflicts. 

Policy ML 1.9: Designated mineral resource lands not included in urban growth areas should be 
protected from infrastructure improvement assessments such as, but not limited to, local improvement 
districts and local utility districts with deferral programs or other measures. 

Rationale: Additional taxes would pressure the property owner into converting resource land 
into other uses. 

Policy ML 1.10: Support the maintenance and development of mineral resource extraction that is 
consistent with the comprehensive plan to provide necessary materials for the development of roads, 
structures and other projects. 

Rationale: Materials provided by mineral extraction operations are vital to the community, and 
are a significant economic activity and supports broader economic development. 

Policy ML 1.11: Protection of mineral resources under the MRLO shall occur in two tiers: 

• Lands actively being mined for commercial production of sand, gravel, or rock/stone are designated 

as mineral resource lands of long-term commercial significance. Owners of these properties may 

request an amendment to remove the MRLO once mineral production has permanently ceased. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 11 of 18  

• For lands not currently in active mineral production, the MRLO shall act as an interim measure to 

protect mineral resources until the presence of a commercially viable mineral deposit can be 

verified through a geologic study. Property owners who wish to finalize designation of their 

property and undertake mining activities may submit a study by a qualified geologist indicating the 

presence of commercially significant, accessible mineral resources. Likewise, property owners may 

request removal of their property from the MRLO by submitting a study from a qualified geologist 

confirming the absence of such resources. 

Rationale: Sand, gravel, and rock are the primary mineral products in Chelan County and are 
therefore given the highest protection. Mineral resources not currently under production can be 
evaluated and added to the overlay as more detailed information becomes available. 

Policy ML 1.12: Inclusion of a property under the MRLO does not imply approval for a specific mineral 
extraction activity and does not substitute for any necessary local or state mining permit required. 

Rationale: The MRLO is designed to protect and preserve mineral lands, but permitting is 
necessary to ensure mineral extraction is conducted consistent with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

Policy ML 1.13: As part of the periodic comprehensive plan update process under the Growth 
Management Act, the County shall regularly review the criteria for economic viability of a mineral 
resource and update the criteria for designation as appropriate. 

Rationale: Economic conditions, market trends, and demand for mineral products can change 
over time, and the MRLO designation criteria may need to be periodically revised to reflect 
current conditions. The regular GMA plan review cycle is an appropriate time to review this 
information. 

Policy ML 1.14: All plats, short plates, development permits, and building permits issued on properties 
within 500 feet of lands designated as part of the MRLO shall include a notice to that effect. The notice 
shall disclose that development of the nearby MRLO lands may include uses and activities that are not 
compatible with residential development. 

Rationale: This notice is required under the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70a.060(1)(b)). 
Additionally, such notification will allow potential real estate purchasers to make educated 
decisions. 

Policy ML 1.15: Mineral extraction and processing activities in the MRLO shall be required to implement 
best management practices (BMPs) to avoid, reduce, or mitigate environmental impacts associated with 
mining activities. Such BMPs shall be designed to protect the natural environment, adjacent land uses, 
and the long-term viability of mineral lands. 

Rationale: Mineral resource extraction operations are intensive land uses that can involve large 
amounts of ground disturbance, noise, dust, and heavy equipment traffic. BMPs are necessary 
to prevent unnecessary impacts on sensitive natural resources and nearby development. 

Policy ML 1.16: Once mining activities have commenced on a MRLO-designated property, development 
of said property under the rules of the underlying zoning may apply in conjunction with the restoration 
of the mining activities. 

Rationale: Postponing development of any part of the site until after reclamation is complete 
ensures that the property is safe for use and that no incompatible land uses are introduced 
while mining operations are ongoing. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 12 of 18  

Policy ML 1.17: At the time of permitting, the County should coordinate with property owners and the 
Department of Natural Resources to identify post-reclamation uses for MRLO properties that are 
consistent with the County’s comprehensive plan and zoning code, both for the mine site itself and for 
planned adjacent uses. 

Rationale: Coordination on future use of the property will help ensure that County plans 
recognize post-mining conditions in these areas and reduce the potential for future 
development that is incompatible with surrounding uses. 

 

 
V. Chelan County Forest/Timber Lands 

Forestland is defined as “land primarily devoted to growing trees for long-term commercial timber 
production on land that can be economically and practically managed for such production…and has long- 
term commercial significance,” RCW 36.70A.030. 

Timber harvesting is a type of natural resource industry with a long history in Chelan County. The 
following outlines the declining trend of timber harvesting, as documented by the Department of 
Natural Resources.6 The following table denotes “thousand board feet” of harvested timber. 

 

Year 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 

Ownership       

Private Industrial 5,710 18,192 1,800 - - 19,820 

Private Large  7,486 636 9,482 1,866 - 

Private Small 866 31,286 6,698 2,780 882 2,374 

Private Unknown     186 719 

Total Private 6,576 56,964 9,134 12,262 2,934 22,913 
       

State 7,989 5,921 897 2,455 1,100 43 

Federal 68,382 6,703 8,990 15,913 6,200 - 

Other Public 13,035 9,708  588 - 9,091 

Total Public 89,406 22,332 9,887 18,956 7,300 9,134 
       

Total All: 95,982 79,296 19,021 31,218 10,234 32,047 

 
 

Land Use Designation/Siting Criteria: Commercial Forest Lands 

The growth management process requires identification of forest lands of long-term commercial 
significance as part of the growth management process. The identification of these lands is an attempt 
to conserve and encourage existing and future forest practice land uses as a viable, permanent land use 
and a significant economic activity within the County. Forest land also provides recreational 
opportunities, scenic value and wildlife habitat. In addition, the identification and land use regulations 
of the commercially significant forest lands will provide protection for forest lands from encroachment 
and incompatible land uses. The Growth Management Act defines "long term commercial significance" 
to include the growing capacity, productivity, and soil composition of the land for long-term commercial 

 
 

6 Industry – companies and individuals operating wood, using plants; private large – non-industrial companies and 
individuals not operating wood-using plants but with statewide holdings totaling 1,000 or more acres; private small – 
non-industrial companies and individuals not operating wood-using plants and owning less than a total of 1,000 
acres. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 13 of 18  

production, in consideration with the land's proximity to population areas, and the possibility of more 
intense uses of the land. 

The following purpose and locational guidelines provide a basic understanding of the zoning districts 
intent and how they relate to the Comprehensive Plan designations. 

Purpose: To assure the long-term conservation of commercial forest lands; to preserve and encourage 
existing and future forest land uses as a viable, permanent land use and a significant economic activity 
within the community; and to protect forest lands of long term commercial significance not already 
characterized by urban development from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

Uses appropriate for these areas include: forestry, open space; residential; and agriculture. Additional 
uses may be considered with supplemental provisions. These provisions shall address performance 
standards, impacts to the surrounding area, and be consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. Such uses may include: natural resource support facilities and services; mineral 
resource activities; intensification of existing development or the development of new small scale 
recreational or tourist uses that rely upon a rural setting but that do not include new residential 
development; intensification of development on lots containing existing isolated nonresidential uses; 
home occupations; bed and breakfasts; and community facilities. 

Density: One (1) dwelling unit per 20 acres. 

Locational Guidelines: 

1. Geographic and Geological Characteristics: Soil characteristics, steep slopes or other physical 
constraints to development may be present. The area should not be adjacent to intensive urban 
or incompatible rural development. Large tracts of land oriented to forest resource 
management exist. 

2. Natural Resources: The area should contain or have the potential to contain commercial forest 
resource management operations and commercial forest support facilities and services. The 
area should meet the criteria under WAC 365-190-060, as forest resource lands of long term 
commercial significance. 

3. Public Services: Uses should not require extension or provision of urban level services. These 
areas may have access to rural governmental services and infrastructure or have the potential to 
be provided with rural governmental services within the 20 year planning period.  Urban 
services should not be present. 

4. Existing Land Uses: The prevailing land use pattern consists of commercial forest resource 
management operations and commercial forest support facilities and services. Dispersed single 
family residences and low intensity rural uses may be present. The predominant parcel size is 
typically 20 acres or larger. Recreational and small scale tourist commercial opportunities may 
be present. 

 

Forest/Timber Resource Lands: Goals & Policies 

Goal FL 1: Conserve forest lands of long term commercial significance. Encourage sustainable 
timber production in rural and resource lands as a viable, permanent land use and a 
significant economic activity within the community. 

Goal Rationale: Timber production remains an important aspect of the County’s economy. 

Policy FL 1.1: Conserve forest lands for productive economic use by identifying and designating forest 
resource lands where the principle and preferred land use is commercial resource management. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 14 of 18  

Rationale: Timber production remains an important aspect of the County’s economy and the 
productive capacity of area forests cannot be ignored. Activities in designated forest resource 
lands that would limit or eliminate the ability to continue commercial forest resource 
management should be discouraged. 

Policy FL 1.2: Promote multiple uses of forest resource lands where such uses do not eliminate or limit 
commercial forest resource management. 

Rationale: Forest resource lands provide unique opportunities and locations for land uses such 
as natural resource extraction and open space and recreation development. 

Policy FL 1.3: Protect designated forest resource lands from inappropriate infrastructure improvement 
assessments through deferral programs or other measures that would protect the ability to continue 
long-term commercial forest resource management. 

Rationale: Additional taxes would impact the viability of commercial forest resource 
management operations. Infrastructure improvements or assessments inconsistent with the 
comprehensive plan should not be supported. 

Policy FL 1.4: Classify and designate forest resource lands based on the criteria and procedures 
established in WAC 365-190-040, and 060 with special consideration given to the determination of 
whether forest resource lands considered for designation are viable as long term commercial significant 
forest resource lands. 

Rationale: Resource lands should be identified based on the best available information at the 
time of the designation. 

Policy FL 1.5: Support maintenance of forest lands in timber and current use property tax classification 
consistent with RCW 84.28, 84.33, and 84.34. 

Rationale: Open space taxation assists the property owner in maintaining property in 
commercial forest production. 

Policy FL 1.6: Promote cooperative resource management between government agencies and private 
entities. 

Rationale: This policy would provide for equal representation and efficient management 
regarding forest issues. 

Policy FL 1.7: Use the permit review process to promote implementation of forest management 
practices that minimize the potential for catastrophic wildfires. 

Rationale: The potential for catastrophic forest fires as in 1994 should be reduced. 

Goal FL 2: Icicle River Valley: Where appropriate, encourage sustainable timber production in 
the Icicle Valley. 

Goal Rationale: Timber production remains an important aspect of Chelan County's economy, 
and the productive capacity of forest in the Icicle Valley cannot be ignored. Consideration of 
visual management to maintain the scenic quality of the Icicle Valley should be encouraged, 
while at the same time providing for the growing, management, and harvesting of timber 
resources. 

Policy FL 2.1: Promote timber production in the Icicle Valley, subject to appropriate conditions for 
protection of the area’s scenic qualities and water resources. 

Rationale: It is important to maintain the environmental and scenic qualities of the Icicle Valley. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 15 of 18  

Policy FL 2.2: Protect the visual character of the Icicle Valley by discouraging clear cutting, except where 
such cuts can be designed in the form of small, irregular patch cuts that take advantage of natural 
variations in the vegetation and topography. 

Rationale: Such measures will help to mitigate the visual impact of clear cutting. 

Policy FL 2.3: Minimize logging road construction; approval of new logging roads should be conditional 
on evaluation of visual and environmental impacts. 

Rationale: Minimizing the construction of logging roads will help to preserve the environmental 
quality of the area. 

 

 
VI. Chelan County Natural Systems/Critical Areas 

The Growth Management Act states that counties should “protect critical area.” Critical areas include 
the following areas and ecosystems: (a) wetland; (b) areas with a critical recharging effect on aquifers 
used for potable water; (c) fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas; (d) frequently flooded areas; and 
(e) geologically hazardous areas. 

The County has completed the planning process for developing these goals and policies and 
corresponding regulations following an extensive citizen participation process. 

 

Natural Systems: Critical Area Goals & Policies 

GOAL CL 1: Identify and protect critical areas from adverse environmental impacts while 
providing for reasonable use of private property. 

Goal Rationale: Preservation of critical areas will help protect the environment and maintain 
and enhance the quality of life. Implementation regulations should provide for reasonable use 
of private property. 

Policy CL 1.1: Promote residential, commercial, and industrial development regulations that protect the 
availability of potable water by preventing contamination of ground water sources. 

Rationale: The maintenance of a safe potable water supply is vital to the County. 

Policy CL 1.2: Encourage restoration of contaminated ground water sources. 

Rationale: The restoration of contaminated ground water helps to meet County needs for 
potable water and is beneficial to the environment. 

Policy CL 1.3: Classify, designate and protect all critical areas, including frequently flooded areas, 
wetlands, fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, aquifer recharge areas and geologically hazardous 
areas using best available science, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.172 and WAC 365-190. 

Rationale: Critical areas add to the quality of life within a community, as well as performing 
important natural functions that assist with protecting private property from damage from 
natural disasters and events. Identifying critical areas and protection measures for those areas 
are important steps in ensuring that those functions and values are preserved for future 
generations’ enjoyment and protection. 

Policy CL 1.4: Regulate development in floodplains to protect property and mitigate the loss of 
floodplain storage capacity. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 16 of 18  

Rationale: The loss of floodwater storage results in a potentially greater level of destruction to 
downstream properties from the resultant higher flood elevations and water flow velocities. 

Policy CL 1.5: Discourage development on unstable soils or steep slopes and in areas susceptible to 
landslide, flood, or avalanche. 

Rationale: Discouraging development in natural hazard areas helps to protect the public health, 
safety and general welfare. 

Policy CL 1.6: Adopt an excavation and grading ordinance to regulate excavation, grading and earthwork 
construction activities. 

Rationale: Uncontrolled filling and grading can cause erosion and siltation of streams, rivers and 
ponds. These activities can also be detrimental to adjacent properties. 

Policy CL 1.7: Support the purchase of critical areas by public or private organizations for purposes of 
preservation or conservation. 

Rationale: This option allows interested private and public organizations to purchase lands they 
wish to put into a long term conservation or preservation programs. 

Policy CL 1.8: Critical area regulations shall not preclude reasonable use of property or affect a taking in 
violation of the U.S. Constitution, the Constitution of the State of Washington, or substantive due 
process. 

Rationale: Private property rights must be protected. 

Policy CL 1.9: Allow for open space and recreational use of critical areas where such use does not 
negatively impact critical areas. 

Rationale: Open space and recreational use of critical areas provides an opportunity for 
residents and visitors to enjoy the natural amenities of the County. 

Policy CL 1.10: When reviewing development proposals, the County shall apply appropriate conditions 
to avoid or mitigate negative impacts to critical areas. Proposal review should also include evaluation of 
the cumulative impacts of development proposals in critical areas. 

Rationale: It is important to take a comprehensive approach to development in a critical area 
since there is often a compounding effect resulting from changes to natural systems 

Policy CL 1.11: Protect water quality and fish habitat by requiring dredging and filling activities to 
minimize introduction of suspended solids, leaching of contaminants, or habitat disturbance. 

Rationale: Uncontrolled dredging and filling activities can negatively impact fish habitat and 
water quality. 

Policy CL 1.12: Encourage the restoration and enhancement of critical areas. 

Rationale: The enhancement and restoration of critical areas improves the functions and values 
they provide. 

Policy CL 1.13: Encourage the use of innovative techniques to protect critical areas, such as purchase of 
development rights, transfer of development rights, clustering, conservation easements, land trusts, and 
the Public Benefit Rating System. 

Rationale: Innovative techniques can benefit the public, land owner, and help to protect critical 
areas. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 17 of 18  

Policy CL 1.14: In designating and protecting critical areas, the County shall use best available science to 
develop policies and development regulations. The County should also give special consideration to 
conservation or protection measures necessary to preserve or enhance anadromous fisheries. 

Rationale: Inclusion and consideration of best available science ensures that the best available 
information and protection measures are utilized. 

Policy CL 1.15: Critical area regulations and designations shall be reviewed when adopting a 
comprehensive plan under RCW 36.70A.040 and implementing development regulations under RCW 
36.70A.120 and may be altered to ensure consistency. In addition, subsequent studies and information 
will be reviewed when drafting development regulations. 

Rationale: Consistency between the comprehensive plan and development regulations is 
required. Additional studies may constitute best available science. 

Policy CL 1.16: The goals and policies of the Chelan County Shoreline Master Program, as amended, are 
considered an element of the comprehensive plan, and are included by reference as if fully set forth 
herein. 

Rationale: The goals and policies of the Shoreline Management Act, as set forth in RCW 
90.58.020, are considered one of the goals of the Growth Management Act. The Growth 
Management Act requires that shoreline master programs be integrated as an element of the 
comprehensive plan. 

Policy CL 1.17: Support ongoing watershed planning efforts. 

Rationale: Watershed planning is essential to address a variety of issues including endangered 
and threatened species listings and water quantity issues. 

 

Natural Systems: Air Goals & Policies 

GOAL NS 1: Protect and maintain air quality. 

Goal Rationale: The protection of air quality is important for the public health, the local 
economy, the environment, and helps to maintain the high quality of life enjoyed by County 
residents and visitors alike. 

Policy NSL 1.1: Support future and ongoing air quality monitoring programs. 

Rationale: Monitoring of air quality helps to determine the impacts of growth and development 
to air quality. Should air quality problems arise, determining the sources of air quality 
degradation, and educational and regulatory tools to maintain or improve air quality would be 
necessary. 

Policy NS 1.2: Promote industrial development that meets air quality standards and is compatible with 
adjacent property. 

Rationale: Air pollution can cause health problems, obscure visibility, create unpleasant odors 
and damage animal and plant life. 

Policy NS 1.3: Support public awareness of air quality, including wood stove standards and burning 
restrictions as adopted by the Department of Ecology. 

Rationale: Federal and state agencies set air quality standards for outdoor air. The purpose of 
these standards is to prevent air pollution from reaching levels that hurt human health. When 
an area does not meet an air quality standard, the state must develop a plan to clean up the air. 



Chelan County Comprehensive Plan 

December 2017 

Resource Element Page 18 of 18  

Natural Systems: Icicle Valley Goals & Policies 

Goal NS 2: ICICLE RIVER VALLEY: Encourage retention of the scenic character and 
environmental quality of the Icicle Valley. 

Goal Rationale: The preservation of the scenic and environmental qualities of the Icicle Valley, 
ensures the retention of significant open space and recreational opportunities, and critical 
areas. 

Critical Area Policy CL 2.1: Continue to utilize the Icicle Valley Design Review Overlay District or design 
guidelines to retain the scenic and environmental qualities of the Icicle Valley. 

Rationale: The Icicle Valley Design Review Overlay District provides additional standards to 
ensure that development does not negatively impact the scenic and environmental qualities of 
the Icicle Valley. 

Critical Area Policy CL 2.2: Residential development should occur at a very low density, and in a 
scattered, diffused pattern in the Icicle Valley Design Review Overlay District. 

Rationale: Dispersed very low density development will help to limit negative visual and 
environmental impacts. 

Critical Area Policy CL 2.3: Implement visual quality standards within the Icicle Valley Design Review 
Overlay District to protect scenic resources. 

Rationale: These standards will allow for continued recreational use of the Icicle Valley and 
avoid or mitigate visual and environmental impacts. 

Critical Area Policy CL 2.4: Private property within the Icicle Valley Design Review Overlay District should 
continue to be designated as an environmentally sensitive area under the provisions of the State 
Environmental Policy Act. 

Rationale: This designation helps assure that environmental aspects are properly considered. 
 

Critical Area Policy CL 2.5: Protect both wilderness values and reserved rights within the Alpine Lakes 
Wilderness so that clean and reliable water resources and water supply continue into the future. 

 

Rationale: A variety of users, including wilderness recreationists and water suppliers 
(municipal, irrigation and fish hatchery) rely on the cold, clean and clear water resources of 
the Icicle Valley for people, farms and fish.











































































































 
Exhibit D 



Chelan County Planning Commission 
Schedule - 2021 

 

 

January 
 

January 27 

6:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

January 15 

February 
 

February 24 

6:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

February 12 

March 
  

March 24 

6:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

March 12 

April  
 

April 28 

7:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

April 16 

May  
 

May 26 

7:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

May 14 

June  
 

June 23 

7:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

June 11 

July 
 

July 28 

7:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

July 16 

August  

 

August 25 

7:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

August 13 

September 
 

September 22 

7:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

September 10 

October 
 

October 27 

6:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

October 15 

November  
 

November 17 

6:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

November 5 

December  
 

December 15 

6:00 PM 

Send info to 
Commissioners on  

December 3 


	Brown Memo to PC on Dec 16 2020 meeting packet
	Exhibit A
	December-16-2020-PC-Agenda
	Meeting Agenda
	In response to the Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, the Planning Commission will hold all of their Regular and Special Meetings via Zoom Video Conference until further notice. Click the link below to join the meeting, beginning at 6:00 pm on November 18...
	II. Public Comment Period
	Next Regular Meeting
	January 27, 2021 at 6:00 pm via Zoom


	Exhibit B
	November-18-2020-PC-Minutes
	Exhibit C
	Item E_CPA20-005 SR_PC12162020 w attach
	Item E - CPA 20-005 Joya - continued
	Staff Report CPA 20-005 Joya
	Agency Comments:
	Public Comment:
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	REVIEW CRITERIA
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACH 1 - SEPA DNS
	ATTACH 2 - WA Commerce Comments
	ATTACH 3 - 60-day Review
	ATTACH 4 - File of Record
	Agency and Public Comments

	Item F_CPA20-007 SR_PC12162020 w attach
	Item F - CPA 20-007 SSRT - continued
	Staff Report CPA 20-007 SSRT Text Amend
	Agency Comments:
	Public Comments:
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	REVIEW CRITERIA
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACH 1 - WA Commerce Comments
	ATTACH 2 - 60-day Review
	ATTACH 3 - File of Record
	Agency and Public Comments

	Exhibit D
	2021 Planning Commission Dates
	December-16-2020-PC-Agenda.pdf
	Meeting Agenda
	In response to the Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, the Planning Commission will hold all of their Regular and Special Meetings via Zoom Video Conference until further notice. Click the link below to join the meeting, beginning at 6:00 pm on November 18...
	II. Public Comment Period
	Next Regular Meeting
	January 27, 2021 at 6:00 pm via Zoom


	December-16-2020-PC-Agenda.pdf
	Meeting Agenda
	In response to the Governor’s Proclamation 20-28, the Planning Commission will hold all of their Regular and Special Meetings via Zoom Video Conference until further notice. Click the link below to join the meeting, beginning at 6:00 pm on November 18...
	II. Public Comment Period
	Next Regular Meeting
	January 27, 2021 at 6:00 pm via Zoom





